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PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This Quarterly Report includes statements that express our opinions, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions
or projections regarding future events or future results and therefore are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking
statements.” These “forward-looking statements” appear throughout this Quarterly Report and relate to matters such as
anticipated future growth in revenues, operating income, cash provided by operating activities and other financial
measures. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “seeks,”
“potential,” “continue,” “intends,” “plans” and similar words and terms used in the discussion of future operating results,
future financial performance and future events identify forward-looking statements. All of these forward-looking
statements are based on management’s current expectations and beliefs about future events. As with any projection or
forecast, they are susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances.

EEINT3 EEINT3

We operate in a highly competitive, consumer and technology driven and rapidly changing business that is affected by
government regulation and economic, strategic, technological, political and social conditions. Various factors could
adversely affect our operations, business or financial results in the future and cause our actual results to differ materially
from those contained in the forward - looking statements. In addition, important factors that could cause our actual results
to differ materially from those in our forward-looking statements include:

« competition for broadband, pay television and telephony customers from existing competitors (such as
broadband communications companies, DBS providers and Internet-based providers) and new competitors
entering our footprint;

» changes in consumer preferences, laws and regulations or technology that may cause us to change our
operational strategies;

+ increased difficulty negotiating programming agreements on favorable terms, if at all, resulting in increased
costs to us and/or the loss of popular programming;

*  increasing programming costs and delivery expenses related to our products and services;

*  our ability to achieve anticipated customer and revenue growth, to successfully introduce new products
and services and to implement our growth strategy;

«  our ability to complete our capital investment plans on time and on budget, including our five-year plan
to build a fiber-to-the-home ("FTTH") network and deploy our new home communications hub;

» the effects of economic conditions or other factors which may negatively affect our customers’ demand
for our products and services;

» the effects of industry conditions;

* demand for advertising on our cable systems;

*  our substantial indebtedness and debt service obligations;
» adverse changes in the credit market;

+ financial community and rating agency perceptions of our business, operations, financial condition and
the industries in which we operate;

» the restrictions contained in our financing agreements;
*  our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our debt service obligations;
« fluctuations in interest rates which may cause our interest expense to vary from quarter to quarter;

« technical failures, equipment defects, physical or electronic break-ins to our services, computer viruses
and similar problems;

+ thedisruption or failure of our network, information systems or technologies as a result of computer hacking,
computer viruses, “cyber-attacks,” misappropriation of data, outages, natural disasters and other material
events;



*  our ability to obtain necessary hardware, software, communications equipment and services and other
items from our vendors at reasonable costs;

*  our ability to effectively integrate acquisitions and to maximize expected operating efficiencies from our
acquisitions or as a result of the transactions, if any;

+  significant unanticipated increases in the use of bandwidth-intensive Internet-based services;
+ the outcome of litigation and other proceedings; and

+  other risks and uncertainties inherent in our cable and other broadband communications businesses and
our other businesses, including those listed under the caption “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2016.

These factors are not necessarily all of the important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from
those expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. Other unknown or unpredictable factors could cause our
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any of our forward-looking statements.

Given these uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements are made only as of the date this Quarterly Report is posted on our website
(www.alticeusa.com). Except to the extent required by law, we do not undertake, and specifically decline any obligation,
to update any forward-looking statements or to publicly announce the results of any revisions to any of such statements
to reflect future events or developments. Comparisons of results for current and any prior periods are not intended to
express any future trends or indications of future performance, unless expressed as such, and should only be viewed as
historical data.

You should read this Quarterly Report with the understanding that our actual future results, levels of activity, performance
and events and circumstances may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify all forward - looking statements
by these cautionary statements.

Certain numerical figures included in this quarterly report have been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, such
numerical figures shown as totals in various tables may not be arithmetic aggregations of the figures that precede them.



ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands)
(See Note 2)
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016
ASSETS (unaudited)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...........cccoceririinieriniiiiieeee e $ 151,548 $ 216,625
RESICEd CASN....eieiiiiciieieceeee ettt 252 16,301
Accounts receivable, trade (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,950 and
B4,952) ottt ettt ans 265,247 266,701
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (including a prepayment to an affiliate
of $11,270 in 2017) (S€€ NOE 13)...ueiuiiieieieieieeeeee et 94,292 70,272
Amounts due from affiliates..........c..oooevviiiiiiiiiiiieceee e 18,266 10,634
Investment securities pledged as collateral ...........cccooeoieiirininininineneeee e — 741,515
DEriVAtiVE CONIACES. .. e.vietietieieeiieieeieete ettt ete et ete st esteeete e eeeesteeneesteensesseenaeeneenees 54,578 352
TOtal CUITENT ASSELS ...c.vevitetiriiietetet ettt ettt sttt 584,183 1,322,400
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,379,242 and
B562,739 e ettt eaeenes 4,273,348 4,605,418
Investment in affiliates ........cceevieeiieieieeieeeeec e 1,694 5,606
Investment securities pledged as collateral...........ccccooeeviiieniiieniniiineeeee 1,652,917 741,515
DErivVatiVe CONMTIACTS ....viiivviiiieitiicieeeiie et et ettt e eteete e e b e ebeestaeebeeseseeseesaseebeessneenns — 10,604
Other assets (including a prepayment to an affiliate of $2,570 in 2017) (See
INOLE 13).ctutuirieise ettt 38,868 37,609
Amortizable customer relationships, net of accumulated amortization of $805,746
ANA $335,459 ...t 4,089,254 4,514,541
Amortizable trade names, net of accumulated amortization of $378,909 and
BAALADD oottt nn 631,391 965,578
Other amortizable intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of $7,842 and
82,483 ettt ettt et enan 25,855 20,904
Indefinite-lived cable television franchisSes ..........ccccooceeviiieniiieninicnceee 8,113,575 8,113,575
L oo 14 1 TSP TRSRR 5,839,757 5,838,959

$ 25,250,842 § 26,176,709

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

(See Note 2)
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY (unaudited)
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE ...ttt $ 531,218  $ 560,863
ACCTUCA INEETESE.....eoueiiiiiiiitietieerte sttt ettt sttt 240,397 378,245
Accrued HabIlItIES ...c.co.evvevirieiirieiirieirccrcrerc e 368,935 425,424
Amounts due t0 affIlHAtES ......ccuviieiieeiieiieceee e s 66,726 73,087
Deferred TEVENUE .....c.veciieiieeieiieeeeet ettt et b e s e saeesnesnas 52,235 47,829
Liabilities under derivative CONIIACES ........c.eeeveerieeriieeieerieereecreesveeieesereereesneenneas 54,578 13,158
Credit facility debt........coeiiiiiriiiieeee e 80,000 25,000
Collateralized INAebtedNESS..........ievueeeiiiiiieeieeieecie ettt sbeebeeseneens — 622,332
Senior notes and dEDENTUIES ..........eecvirieriieieiieieie ettt sre e sre e seee s e 1,572,358 926,045
Capital lease ObIiZAtIONS. ......ccuieiiiiieierieeereee ettt sttt s 9,848 14,050
INOLES PAYADLE ...ttt ettt sttt 27,128 5,427
Total current Habilities.........ccvievuieriiieiiecieeie et sveesbe e ens 3,003,423 3,091,460
Liabilities under derivative CONIACES.......cc.eevverueerieriieierieeiesieeeesieesesreesesreessesseesenns 52,488 —
Oher HADIIEIES ....e.veveiiiietiteie ettt sttt ne e eneeneas 220,955 194,354
Deferred tax Hability........ccvecveiieiiieieiieieie ettt sra e sreenne e 5,899,242 6,429,640
Credit facility debt......c.oiuiieieeieeeeee e 4,043,792 2,606,887
Collateralized INAEbLEANESS .........cccvevieriierieiieie ettt sae e enas 1,314,788 663,737
Senior gUATaNtEEd NOLES .......ccueevieeiertieieeieeie ettt ettt ettt eeee st e e et e seeeeeeaeenees 2,290,748 2,289,494
Senior notes and dEDENTUIES ........cc.evieriirieriiiienie ettt ere e e seeesaeesaennes 6,657,967 8,548,853
Capital lease ObIIZAtIONS .......eeeiiuirieiieieeiee et 4,541 11,293
INOLES PAYADIE......ceeeeenieiieiieee ettt sttt st 49,314 8,299
TOLAL TADIIIEIES . vttt ettt et e eeeeeeesesee st e eseeseeseeeeseeeeeeseneeneees 23,537,258 23,844,017
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable QUILY.......cccooviiieciieiccreeeceteceeete ettt ettt ettt et ettt e eteereeaee s 275,373 43,378
Stockholders' Equity:
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, 100 shares issued and
OULSTANAINEZ. ...c.viviiiiciiieee ettt ettt et te e b e e b e teessesbeesseereenseereennas — —
Paid-in CaPItal......cceeviiiieiieieeeeee et ns 2,119,102 2,920,743
Accumulated defiCit ........c.ocveiiieiiiiiciiceceeee e (677,450) (633,695)
1,441,652 2,287,048
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) .......ocvveverriecieeieriieieniieiesieeeee (4,130) 1,979
Total Stockholders' QUILY .......ceovieiereieieri ettt 1,437,522 2,289,027
NONCONLIOIING INEETEST.....cveteeiiiteiertetete ettt ettt sttt 689 287
B0 T 1L TSRS 1,438,211 2,289,314

$ 25,250,842

$ 26,176,709

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Three Months Ended September 30,
2017 2016

Revenue (including revenue from affiliates of $1,415 and $720, respectively) (See
INOLE 13) ettt ettt ettt et ettt ettt st be e nee $ 1,664,319 $ 1,614,699

Operating expenses:

Programming and other direct costs (including charges from affiliates of $1,227 in

2017) (SEE NOLE 13).iuiieiiieiieiiieieeeie et eete et steere e tbeesteesteeeaeesseessseessaessseesseessseenns 570,995 554,370
Other operating expenses (including charges from affiliates of $26,358 and $6,198,
respectively) (S€e NOE 13) c.eiuiiiiiieieeee ettt 390,673 493,709
Restructuring and Other EXPEenSe........cccevieriiiierinieieeteee et 35,364 42,264
Depreciation and amOTtZatioN.........c..eeeeeuerieerieenieerieerieenieeneeeteeeteeereseereseerenaenens 656,102 481,497
1,653,134 1,571,840
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ...veviriiriieiieieieeierie ettt ettt e e esre e s e reesseeseenseseas 11,185 42,859
Other income (expense):
INtETESt EXPEINSE, NETL..c..eirvevirieeirteiieteiieteeetene ettt ettt ae sttt et et se et seenenaenens (277,228) (292,544)
Gain (10ss) 0N INVESIMENS, NET........coiiiiiiiiiiiiciiici e (18,900) 24,833
Gain on derivative CONTTACES, TIET .......cevveuerieuirieiinieiirieertee ettt ettt erenaenens 55,602 773
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred financing costs ................. (38,857) —
Other INCOME (EXPENSE), TEL ....evvieurerereierieeierteteeteteeteseeeesseesesseessesneensesnnessesssessens (65) 2,530
(279,448) (264,408)
Loss before INCOME tAXES .......cceeverveuireeiiieiirieiiieircieeee et (268,263) (221,549)
INCOME taX DENETIL.....eeieiieieiee ettt 112,353 89,157
INEE LOSS ..ttt ettt (155,910) (132,392)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling iNterests .............oeeeieirirciirrccininiccnan. (135) (256)
Net loss attributable to Cablevision Systems Corporation stockholder......................... $ (156,045) $ (132,648)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)

Revenue (including revenue from affiliates of $1,809, $720 and
$2,088, respectively) (See Note 13)....ccocvivrivireereneieiereeeeennes

Operating expenses:

Programming and other direct costs (including charges from
affiliates of $3,057, $0 and $84,636, respectively) (See Note
L3 et

Other operating expenses (including charges from affiliates of
$65,177, $6,198 and $2,182, respectively) (See Note 13)...........

Restructuring and other eXpense ..........cocceeeveenineeneneeneneeneenen

Depreciation and amortization .............eeeeeveevereeeeeneeeeenesneneennnes

Operating iNCOME (10SS) ....eouerueruerierieieieieieieteeeeeee et
Other income (expense):
Interest EXPEense, NEt......ccoccverierreerieeieieeieeeeeeee e e e sse e seeenees
Gain on INVESTMENTS, TIET......vvvviiiiieiiieeeeieiireeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenreeeeeeeanes
Loss on derivative CONtracts, N€t...........cocveveevueeeeieeeeeveeeeeeeeenennns

Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred
FINANCING COSES .veuvieniiriieiieieie ettt sttt ene

Other INCOME, NEL.......coooveieeeerieieieeeeeeeeeee e

Income (loss) before INCOME taAXES .....ceevverrerriererieeierieeieseeieneens
Income tax benefit (EXPense) ........coeerverreereeeeeneeeenie e eeeseeeeen
Net INCOME (10SS)..veuvrrereririeriieiieietieienteeeesreeeesseeaesseessessaessenseens
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests ..............
Net income (loss) attributable to Cablevision Systems
Corporation Stockholder(s) ........ccoveeereriiereeiereee e
INCOME PER SHARE:

Basic income per share attributable to Cablevision Systems
Corporation stockholder(s).......c.cocvevuerierierierierieieeieeeee e

Basic weighted average common shares (in thousands)...............

Diluted income per share attributable to Cablevision Systems
Corporation stockholder(s) ........ccoceevuerirnenienenieeeieceeeee

Diluted weighted average common shares (in thousands)............

Cash dividends declared and paid per share of common stock.

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months June 21, 2016
Ended to January 1, 2016
September 30, September 30, to
2017 2016 June 20, 2016

$ 4,973,542 1,798,559 |$ 3,137,604
1,710,245 616,860 1,088,555
1,271,971 543,884 1,136,970
105,182 131,500 22,223
1,641,477 526,057 414,550
4,728,875 1,818,301 2,662,298
244,667 (19,742) 475,306
(832,894) (320,887) (285,508)
169,888 83,467 129,990
(81,905) (26,572) (36,283)
(57,833) — _

832 2,536 4,855
(801,912) (261,456) (186,946)
(557,245) (281,198) 288,360
205,996 113,258 (124,848)
(351,249) (167,940) 163,512

(737) 108 236

$ (351,986) $ (167,832) |$ 163,748
$ 0.60

272,035

$ 0.58

280,199

$ _

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.




CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Three Months Ended September 30,
2017 2016
INEE LOSS 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt et et et e st eebe b e b ns et esseseene e $ (155,910) $ (132,392)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans:
Unrecognized actuarial gain (10SS) ........cceevervieieniieiieniieienieeie e seennens (4,056) 5,016
Applicable INCOME tAXES......cceereerrieieeiieieeiete et 1,622 (2,0006)
Unrecognized gain (loss) arising during period, net of income taxes....... (2,434) 3,010
Settlement loss (gain) included in net periodic benefit cost...................... 1,014 (33)
APPLlIicable INCOME tAXES.......ceevverrierierieiieieereereesteeee e e steereesaeesaesaeesseas (406) 13
Settlement loss (gain) included in net periodic benefit cost, net of
INCOME TAXES....euveevrivieeriereeteereesreesteeteeeeereessesseeseesseseesseseessesseessesseennas 608 (20)
Other comprehensive income (10SS) .......ocvevveriereierieieieieeeeeee e (1,826) 2,990
ComMPIENENSIVE 10SS ....uvivieiiieiieiiciieie ettt ettt et et re e e reennas (157,736) (129,402)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests ...................... (135) (256)
Comprehensive loss attributable to Cablevision Systems Corporation
SEOCKNOLACT ...ttt et $ (157,871) $ (129,658)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Successor Predecessor
Nine Months  June 21,2016
Ended to January 1,
September 30, September 30, 2016 to
2017 2016 June 20, 2016
Net INCOME (10SS)....ouveveeeereeeeeeeeeeeeee et ee et ee et et eeaeeees e eneeneeneas $ (351,249) $  (167,940) |$ 163,512
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans:
Unrecognized actuarial gain (10SS)..........ccevveeeerrievieneeienneennn. (8,389) 4,034 68
Applicable INCOME taXES ......eevverreerireeieiieieeeeee e 3,356 (1,613) (28)
Unrecognized gain (loss) arising during period, net of
INCOIME TAXES ..vvvveeieiieeeeeeeeeereeeeeeseeereeeesesiaeeeeeessinreeeeesssraeees (5,033) 2,421 40
Amortization of actuarial losses, net included in net periodic
DENETit COSE....ouiiuiiiiriiriiniiicreee e — — 929
Applicable INCOME tAXES .......ccveeveerierierieeieereeeeere e — — (388)
Amortization of actuarial losses, net included in net periodic
benefit cost, net of INCOME tAXES.....ccuvvveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenee — — 541
Curtailment loss, net of settlement loss of $1,403 included in
net periodic benefit cost in 2017 and settlement loss of $33
and $1,655 included in net periodic benefit cost in 2016..... (1,792) (33) 1,655
Applicable INCOME tAXES .......ccvereerrieeieiieieiieienre e see e saeennes 716 13 (679)
Curtailment loss, net of settlement loss included in net
periodic benefit cost, net of income taxes ...............coevenneenn. (1,076) (20) 976
Other comprehensive income (10SS) .........ccceevveeveeveeciiereecieereereenene, (6,109) 2,401 1,557
Comprehensive income (10SS) ........ceevvervveiereerieniieiesiereeeere e (357,358) (165,539) 165,069
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling
IEETESES ..eovvivieieceeete et et et et e ete et e teebeereebeereesseeanesseesnesseesnans (737) 108 236
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Cablevision Systems
Corporation StocKhOIder(S) ........ooeveveeeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ (358,095) §  (165,431)|$ 165,305

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Accumulated
Other Total Non-
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive  Stockholders' controlling Total
Capital Deficit Income Equity Interest Equity

Balance at January 1, 2017 ........... $ 2,920,743 § (633,695) $ 1,979 $§ 2,289,027 $ 287 $2,289314
Net loss attributable to

stockholders ..........cccooeeeriennne — (351,986) — (351,986) — (351,986)
Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interests............. — — — — 737 737
Pension liability adjustments, net

of income taxes ..........c.ceceeennee — — (6,109) (6,109) — (6,109)
Share-based compensation

EXPENSC...vvieeieeerreeireeereeeereenens 28,597 — — 28,597 — 28,597
Change in fair value of

redeemable equity ..................... (231,995) — — (231,995) — (231,995)
Contributions from Altice USA ... 350,120 — — 350,120 — 350,120
Distributions to Altice USA........... (925,262) — — (925,262) (335) (925,597)
Transfer of goodwill...................... (23,101) — — (23,101) — (23,101)
Recognition of previously

unrealized excess tax benefits

related to share-based awards

in connection with the adoption

of ASU 2016-09.......ocooveueuennnn — 308,231 — 308,231 — 308,231
Balance at September 30, 2017..... $ 2,119,102 § (677,450) $ (4,130) $ 1437522 $ 689 $ 1,438,211

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Successor Predecessor
Nine Months
Ended June 21, 2016 to
September 30, September 30, January 1, 2016
2017 2016 to June 20, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:

NEt INCOME (J0SS) .vveuerieiieeieeiiieiieeiee et esee et e e e esteesbeeeeesebeesseessseenes $ (351,249) § (167,940) 1$ 163,512
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization.............ccceeveeeeeerereneneneneneneneennes 1,641,477 526,057 414,550

Gain on sale of affiliate Interests ............cccoceoiveiiciiiiiiciiin. — (206) —

Equity in net loss of affiliates ........ccccoeveeeieveienininiinincceeen 5,697 400 —

Gain on INVeStmMents, Net..........coovvuiiriiiiiiiieiiccereerceceees (169,888) (83,467) (129,990)

Loss on derivative contracts, Net..........cceceeveeeeererenenieneneneneneennes 81,905 26,572 36,283

Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred financing

COSES oottt st sttt ettt ettt eb ettt st sa et st sbe e bt ebe e ne 57,833 — —
Amortization of deferred financing costs and discounts (premiums)
on INdebtedness .........ccceiiiiiiniiiiii (9,350) (2,943) 11,673

Share-based compensation EXPEnSe..........ccueeeeeerererenenerenenennens 28,597 1,091 24,778

Settlement loss related to pension and postretirement plans ............. 1,403 (33) 1,655

Deferred iNCOME taXes ...........ecvvueeruiieuireeiiieiineeeseesee e (216,253) (113,152) 116,150

Provision for doubtful aCCOUNTS .........ceeiivviiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 33,774 10,710 13,240

Excess tax benefits related to share-based awards.............c..ccveeueenn. — 82 (82)

Change in assets and liabilities (240,323) (144,685) (157,675)
Net cash provided by operating activities..........cceecereererienesieseeieneenne 863,623 52,486 494,094

Cash flows from investing activities:

Payments for acquisition, net of cash acquired ........cc.cocceceveneninenennns (43,608) — —
Capital eXPENdItUIES ........ccceririririirieieiereeeeceie et (550,231) (150,965) (330,131)
Proceeds related to sale of equipment, including costs of disposal........ 3,590 542 1,106
Proceeds from sale of affiliate interests.........cooevvvvivvvieivveeiiieeeeeeeenen. — 13,825 —
Decrease (increase) in other investments (4,800) (2,866) 610
Additions to other intangible assets (1,700) — (1,709)

Net cash used in investing activities ..........cooveereereererienenieeeeeeene (596,749) (139,464) (330,124)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from credit facility debt..........cccocvvvverircienieciinieieeieeeee e
Repayment of credit facility debt ...........coccooiiiiiiiiiiee
Proceeds from issuance of Senior NOtES ........c.cceveverveeverieereeienieeeenenes
Proceeds from collateralized indebtedness..........cccceeeevienveecieenieenieennn.

Repayment of collateralized indebtedness and related derivative
contracts

Repayment of senior notes and debentures

Proceeds from notes payable .........ccoeeevieriiiienesieeeeeee e
Proceeds from stock option eXercisSes........ccovverereenierieneeienieeesceeeee

Tax withholding associated with shares issued for equity-based
awards

Distributions to Altice USA in 2017 and common stockholders in

Principal payments on capital lease obligations ............ccecveevevreeeeennenne.
Deemed repurchases of restricted StOCK ........cccceveeervercniniencninenennens
Additions to deferred financing COStS..........ccvevvirveeriieciereeieeiereeeere e
Contribution from Altice USA........coooiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e
Contributions from noncontrolling interests, net...........cecvveverrereenenne.

Excess tax benefit related to share-based awards...

Distributions to noncontrolling interests, Net............cecereereereereereeneenne.
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities............cceecvenenee.

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
from coNtinUing OPEIatioNS.........ccveeverreeverreeresreereereesseeeesseereesseessesses

Cash flows of discontinued operations:

Net cash used in operating activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued
operations
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period............

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months
Ended June 21, 2016 to January 1, 2016
September 30, September 30, to
2017 2016 June 20, 2016

4,343,750 $ 595,000 |$ —
(2,866,506) (329,500) (14,953)
— 1,310,000 —

662,724 179,388 337,149
(654,989) (143,102) (281,594)
(1,265,055) — —
24,649 — (1,291)

_ — 14,411
— — (6,034)
(925,262) — (4,066)
(10,954) (4,511) (11,552)
— — (41,469)

(6,142) (180,067) —
350,120 — _

— — 240

— (82) 82

(335) — —
(348,000) 1,427,126 9,077)
(81,126) 1,340,148 154,893
— — (21,000)
— — (21,000)

232,926 151,615 1,004,879
151,800 $ 1,491,763 |$ 1,138,772

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands)
(See Note 2)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS .......cc.eoiiiiiiiee e
RESEICTEA CASN....uiiiiiiiiiciec ettt et e e et e e b e ebe e sabeeveeeaseeebaesaneenreas
Accounts receivable, trade (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,950 and $4,952) .....

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (including a prepayment to an affiliate of
$11,270 10 2017) (S8 NOLE 13) oviuiiiieiiieiirieereeese sttt

Amounts due from affiliates.........cceecueriieiiiriieieriieiee e
Investment securities pledged as collateral .............cccoveeiirierinienieeeee e
DEIIVALIVE CONITACES ... .vevieuieetieieeiieteeetestestesteetesteesaesseesseeseessesseeseeseesseassesssessesssessesseessenssenns
TOtA]l CUITENT ASSELS ..euvveeerieiieetieiiiece ettt et e eteerteesaeebeesebeebeesebeesseessseesseessseesseessseeseensseans
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,379,242 and $562,739
INveStMENt iN AffIlIALES.....c.viiiiieiiietie ettt et e e st e ebeesabeebeesebeenaaessneens
Investment securities pledged as collateral............coocuerieviiiieciieieiieieie et
DEITVALIVE CONTIACES ...iiuvieetiieiieieieeitieiieeitee sttt erteeeteebeessseeseesebeeseessseessaessseesseessseasseessseaseessseans
Other assets (including a prepayment to an affiliate of $2,570 in 2017) (See Note 13)............

Amortizable customer relationships, net of accumulated amortization of $805,746 and
8335,450 bbbttt ettt nes

Amortizable trade names, net of accumulated amortization of $378,909 and $44,422.............
Other amortizable intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of $7,842 and $2,483 ...........
Indefinite-lived cable television franchiSes ..........c.cccveeieeiiieiiieiiecie et
GOOAWILL vttt ettt ettt ettt e e s te e b e be e b e eteesbeeseesseeseeseesaesaeensesseessans

September 30, December 31,

2017 2016
(unaudited)

$ 151,084 $ 216,140

252 16,301

265,247 266,701

94,404 70,383

18,266 10,634

— 741,515

54,578 352

583,831 1,322,026

4,273,348 4,605,418

1,694 5,606

1,652,917 741,515

— 10,604

38,868 37,609

4,089,254 4,514,541

631,391 965,578

25,855 20,904

8,113,575 8,113,575

5,839,757 5,838,959

$ 25,250,490

$ 26,176,335

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)
(In thousands, except share amounts)

(See Note 2)
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER DEFICIENCY (unaudited)
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ......ceovieieieieeieietieeteeeeteet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ae et ese et eae et easeseasesenseseans $ 531,218  $ 560,863
ACCTUCH INEEIEST....eueiiiieiieiietirte ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt be s et st a e ettt n et eneebeeaes 193,456 323,446
ACCTUEA HADILIEIES....c.cveeiiiiiiciieicete ettt ettt 369,049 425,514
AmOoUnts dUE 10 AffTIATES. .....cooueiiiiiieeeeiiee et ettt e e e et e e e e s eeeeesesnaaeeeeeas 34,366 349,347
DETEITEA TEVEIUE ...ttt et et e e et e e e e s eaaeessntaeeennaeeenees 52,235 47,829
Liabilities under derivative CONTIACES ........cccuvevieiiiiiiiieeeeeierieeeeeeeieeeeeeeesreeeesessnreeeeesssnneeeesens 54,578 13,158
Credit FACIIEY AeDt....iciiiieiiciiciccece ettt sb e be e te e neenns 80,000 25,000
Collateralized INAEDIEANESS ......vviiiiieeiiee ettt e e e e st e e e e ssnaaeeeeeas — 622,332
Senior NOtes and AEDENTUIES ..........ccveiiiiiiiieiie ettt et e et e e eaaeesenaeeas 814,843 —
Capital [€aSe ODIIGALIONS......cc.eeiiieieiiiieie ettt e e ae e eneeeseenseeneenes 9,848 14,050
NOES PAYADIE ...ttt ettt ettt s e saesre e b e s tsesbesss e reeraesbeeseenns 27,128 5,427
Total CUITENT THADIIITIES .....c.vvvviiiiieeeiiieee ettt ettt et e e e e et e e e e saabeeeeessnnaaaeeeeas 2,166,721 2,386,966
Liabilities under derivatiVe CONIIACTS...........cocviiiierieieeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e et eeeaeeeeeeeeeseeeeeneaessnneeeas 52,488 —
Other HADIIIEIES. ......ecviitiiiieieieiet ettt ettt et ettt taeteeseeseebeese s esbesbessessessessessesaasas 220,955 194,354
Deferred tax Hability .......c.ccicieiiiiiiiiciece ettt b e et re e be e e ennens 6,279,533 6,608,959
Credit faClity dEDE.......ooviiieieieieieieietet ettt ettt ettt et et e ebe bbb e s e s essesseseesaenas 4,043,792 2,606,887
Collateralized INAEDEANESS ........c..eeiieiiiiiieecee ettt et e e e e e eaaeesenaeeas 1,314,788 663,737
SeNnior GUATANTEEA NOLES .....eevierereieieeiesieseteteetee it eete et et et estesseensesseensesseensesseensesseensessaensenseenes 2,290,748 2,289,494
Senior NOteS aNd AEDEINTULES...........ccouviiiieiieieeiie ettt e e ettt e e e enteeeeaeeesaaeesnnaeesans 5,597,946 6,732,816
Capital [€aSe ODIIZALIONS ......eevieiieiieiieierit ettt ettt e s e st e sseeneesseenaesseeneens 4,541 11,293
NOES PAYADIC.......ccueiiiiiiicie ettt ettt ettt et s te et s re e b e e sa e b e e ss et e essebeessesseenseeaeennas 49,314 8,299
TOtAl THADIIILIES ...ve.viveieieeieieietet ettt ettt te et ete et e seebeebesbessessessessessessessassasens 22,020,826 21,502,805
Commitments and contingencies
RedeemabIe CQUILY .....c..ccvieiiericiietieie ettt ettt ettt et beeteebeeaeesteereesaeenaesreennens 275,373 43,378
Member's Equity:
Accumulated defiCit.........ocviiiiiieii et ettt (710,222) (580,181)
Other member's equity (100 membership units issued and outstanding) ..............ccceevveveeneene. 3,667,954 5,208,067
2,957,732 4,627,886
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS).......cc.oevieviiriieviiiieriiciee e (4,130) 1,979
Total MEMDEI'S EQUILY.....ccviiiiieiiieeii ettt ettt este e ebeesbeebeesebeesseessaeebeassneenreas 2,953,602 4,629,865
NONCONLIOIIING TNEETESE .....veevvieiieiieiieiieeeite ettt et ete st ebeete et e et e sbeesaesaeesaesreessesseessesssessenssenes 689 287
TOtAL CQUILY ...veeviveeteeti ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e eteeateeteeeteeaeeeteeneesteentesasensesreeareessenns 2,954,291 4,630,152

$ 25,250,490 $ 26,176,335

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)

Three Months Ended September 30,
2017 2016

Revenue (including revenue from affiliates of $1,415 and $720, respectively) (See
NOLE 13) ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et saene s $ 1,664,319 $ 1,614,699

Operating expenses:

Programming and other direct costs (including charges from affiliates of $1,227 in

2017) (SEENOLE 13) .ttt ettt ettt ettt et enreere e enis 570,995 554,370
Other operating expenses (including charges from affiliates of $26,358 and $6,198,
respectively) (S€€ NOLE 13) ...couiiiiiiiiiiiriieeeee ettt 390,673 493,709
Restructuring and Other €XPeNSe...........ccevuererieririeririnieeneeneeseeesee et nenene 35,364 42,264
Depreciation and amortiZation............ceeeererererienienienienteteteeeeeeeeetesesreseessesaeneens 656,102 481,497
1,653,134 1,571,840
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ...vevvieiiriieriiiierit ettt ettt et e b sseesaeesaesseensenseas 11,185 42,859
Other income (expense):
INtErest EXPENSE, NEL.......eiviiiiiirieeieerte ettt ettt st (239,407) (247,664)
Gain (10ss) 0N INVESTMENLS, NEL.......ccvieeeriierieiieeieieeeecie ettt bt reeee s ees (18,900) 24,833
Gain on derivative CONIACES, TET ......ocuuuvieiiiieerieeeeeeeieeeeeeeereeeeeeseaeeeeeseeaseeessesenees 55,602 773
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred financing costs ............... (38,857) —
Other INCOME (EXPENSE), NEL ....euvievieeieeieieeiieteeiesteete e eaesseeaesseesesseessesseensesseensenees (65) 2,530
(241,627) (219,528)
L 0SS DETOTe INCOIME TAXES ....eevvierieeieiiiecire et et et e e eeteeeveesaeeeebeestaeeabeessaeenseeneean (230,442) (176,669)
INCOME tAX DENETIL ... .oiiiieeiii it e e e e eaaeeenes 114,474 71,204
INEE L0SS 1.ttt ettt ettt st b e sttt (115,968) (105,465)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling iNterests ...........ccooeeeereeierreerieeeieeeenene (135) (256)
Net loss attributable to CSC Holdings, LLC's sole member ............ccccceevvevenieeeenennne. $ (116,103) $ (105,721)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

14



CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Successor Predecessor
Nine Months  June 21, 2016
Ended to January 1,
September 30, September 30, 2016 to
2017 2016 June 20, 2016
Revenue (including revenue from affiliates of $1,809, $720 and
$2,088, respectively) (See Note 13) ...ooverieieiieiieieieieeeeeeie e $§ 4,973,542 § 1,798,559 |$ 3,137,604
Operating expenses:
Programming and other direct costs (including charges from
affiliates of $3,057, $0 and $84,636, respectively) (See Note
1 ) TSRO U RO SU USRS 1,710,245 616,860 1,088,555
Other operating expenses (including charges from affiliates of
$65,177, $6,198 and $2,182, respectively) (See Note 13) .......... 1,271,971 543,884 1,136,970
Restructuring and other eXpense...........cceeveeeeereeeecreceenieeeeeneenen. 105,182 131,500 22,223
Depreciation and amortization..............cceeeveeveerieeeerreereeneeeesseennns 1,641,477 526,057 414,550
4,728,875 1,818,301 2,662,298
Operating inCOmMe (10SS) .....ccvervirieriiiierieiiee e 244,667 (19,742) 475,306
Other income (expense):
Interest EXPense, NEt.........cceevvereerierieieeiereeeere et esre e sae e sreeeees (709,806) (269,569) (157,343)
Gain on INVESTMENTS, NE........ccveiiieiiiieieeeeeeeeeeee e e eaee e 169,888 83,467 129,990
Loss on derivative contracts, Net ..........cceeeveeereeeveecreesreeereeeneenne (81,905) (26,572) (36,283)
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred
fINANCING COSLS...cviiiiiiriiiieiietieieete ettt ens (51,533) — —
Other INCOME, NET.......ccoviiuriieiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee et essnaeeeas 832 2,536 4,855
(672,524) (210,138) (58,781)
Income (loss) before iNCOME taXes........ceevevveereeireeiecreeieereeeeenenes (427,857) (229,880) 416,525
Income tax benefit (EXPense).........ccevveeeerreeierreeeerieeeenreeeesreennes 154,694 92,730 (179,658)
Net iNCOME (J0SS) .veevvierieierieiieiii ettt et re e (273,163) (137,150) 236,867
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests.............. (737) 108 236
Net income (loss) attributable to CSC Holdings, LLC's sole
115 101 o1 OSSR SOR PR RRTRT $§ (273,900) §  (137,042) |$ 237,103

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Three Months Ended September 30,
2017 2016
N 10SS ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt e sttt neeneenes $ (115,968) $ (105,465)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined benefit pension plans and postretirement plans:
Unrecognized actuarial gain (10SS).........ceceevieierierienieienieieneeie e (4,056) 5,016
ApPPLlicable INCOME tAXES ......ecviivierierierietieere ettt e ve s 1,622 (2,0006)
Unrecognized gain (loss) arising during period, net of income taxes.......... (2,434) 3,010
Settlement loss (gain) included in net periodic benefit cost ........................ 1,014 (33)
APPLicable INCOME tAXES ......eecvirvierieeieiieiesti e ste e steeae e esbe e ebe e eseeeeenns (406) 13
Settlement loss included in net periodic benefit cost, net of income taxes.. 608 (20)
Other comprehensive iNcome (10SS).......ecevervieeierieriirieiieiee et (1,826) 2,990
COMPIENENSIVE 1SS ....oviieiiciieiiceicie ettt ettt ettt ettt et eae e sreesneas (117,794) (102,475)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests......................... (135) (256)
Comprehensive loss attributable to CSC Holdings, LLC's sole member ........... $ (117,929) $ (102,731)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)
Successor Predecessor
Nine Months  June 21, 2016 January 1,
Ended to 2016
September 30, September 30, to
2017 2016 June 20, 2016
Net iNCOME (L0SS) ..vevieviiriieiiiieie ettt ee e $ (273,163) $ (137,150) |$ 236,867
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined benefit pension plans and postretirement plans:
Unrecognized actuarial gain (10SS).......c.coeeeveevevreeeeereeeeennennn. (8,389) 4,034 68
Applicable INCOME taAXES .......ccvevveerierieiieieereeeeieeeeere e sae e 3,356 (1,613) (28)
Unrecognized gain (loss) arising during period, net of
INCOIME TAXES ...vveeeeiieeeeieeeeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeteeeeaeeeseeaeessneeeeas (5,033) 2,421 40
Amortization of actuarial losses, net included in net periodic
DENETit COSE ..oviriiririiriiiieie et — — 929
Applicable INCOME tAXES ......cccverveereerieieeiieieereieeeeeie e saeeenes — — (388)
Amortization of actuarial losses, net included in net periodic
benefit cost, net of incCOme taxes .........ccceevvvvevvveeeeneeeinnnn. — — 541
Curtailment loss, net of settlement loss of $1,403 included in
net periodic benefit cost in 2017 and settlement loss of
$33 and $1,655 included in net periodic benefit cost in
2016 ettt ne s erea (1,792) (33) 1,655
Applicable INCOME tAXES .......ccvevviericreeiiereereeeereeeere e sae e 716 13 (679)
Curtailment loss, net of settlement loss included in net
periodic benefit cost, net of income taxes..............ccocvenneene. (1,076) (20) 976
Other comprehensive income (10SS)........ccccvevvvreverieeienieienieieeeene (6,109) 2,401 1,557
Comprehensive income (10SS) ........c.ocvevveieeriieienieeieseeeeereeee v (279,272) (134,749) 238,424
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling
IEETESES ...vviveeeiecte ettt ettt et et et e et e eve et e e re et e eteeaesaeesestsesbeeanens (737) 108 236
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to CSC Holdings,
LLC'S SO1& MEMDET ........coveieieeieiieiieiieie e eeas $ (280,009) §  (134,641)|$ 238,660

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at January 1,
2017 o

Net loss attributable to
CSC Holdings' sole
member.............ceeuvnen.

Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Pension liability
adjustments, net of
income taxes.................

Share-based
compensation expense ..

Change in fair value of
redeemable equity.........

Contributions from
Cablevision...................

Cash distributions..............
Transfer of goodwill..........

Recognition of previously
unrealized excess tax
benefits related to
share-based awards in
connection with the
adoption of ASU
2016-09.......ccveevvern.

Balance at September 30,
2017 i

CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL MEMBER'S EQUITY

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
Accumulated Total
Other Other Member's Non-
Accumulated ~ Member's  Comprehensive Equity controlling Total
Deficit Equity Equity (Loss)  (Deficiency) Interest Equity
$  (580,181) $5,208,067 $ 1,979 $ 4,629,865 $ 287 $ 4,630,152
(273,900) — — (273,900) — (273,900)
— — — — 737 737
— — (6,109) (6,109) — (6,109)
— 28,597 — 28,597 — 28,597
— (231,995) — (231,995) — (231,995)
— 350,120 — 350,120 — 350,120
—  (1,663,734) — (1,663,734) (335) (1,664,069)
— (23,101) — (23,101) — (23,101)
143,859 — — 143,859 — 143,859

$

(710,222) $3,667,954 §

(4,130) $ 2,953,602 $

18

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net iNCOME (J0SS) .veeuvieririeiieeiiieiieeieeteeeie et sre e e seeebeeseeesbeesseeeanas

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization.............ceecverveeeereereeseerieseesnennens
Gain on sale of affiliate INtErests .........ccoeveeveerciierieecieeie e
Equity in net loss of affiliates ..........ccceeveeveeriecienieieceeie e
Gain on INVESTMENTS, NEL......ccuvvvieiiieiiiieee e eeeeeeeeeeeaeeee e
Loss on derivative COntracts, N€t........ccceeevuvveevveeeeineeeeeeeeeieeeennns

Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred
fINANCING COSES...viiuririiiiiriieiieieii ettt ste e ee e ae e enseseees

Amortization of deferred financing costs and discounts on
INAEDLEANESS ..ot

Share-based compensation EXPense.........ccceveervereenuereenueneenuennes

Settlement loss and amortization of actuarial losses related to
pension and postretirement plans ...........cocceeeereerinieneneeneene.

Deferred INCOME tAXES ...ocvviiieeeieeeeeieeeeee et enes

Provision for doubtful accounts.........ccccccceevveuvvvreeivnnnne.

Excess tax benefits related to share-based awards

Change in assets and 1iabilities ..........ccccoceverenenieninenieeee

Net cash provided by operating activities ..........cceevververeverrersiereenenenn
Cash flows from investing activities:

Payments for acquisition, net of cash acquired..........c.ccoceverereneennene

Capital eXPenditures. .......cceeeerieriereiiere et

Proceeds related to sale of equipment, including costs of disposal ....

Proceeds from sale of affiliate interests

Decrease (increase) in other investments
Additions to other intan@ible aSSEts ..........ccceveevverierieiieieeeeieeieieans

Net cash used in investing activities .........cceccerevererierierieneeieeenne

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months ~ June 21, 2016
Ended to January 1,
September 30,  September 30, 2016 to

2017 2016 June 20, 2016

$ (273,163) $ (137,150) |$ 236,867
1,641,477 526,057 414,550

— (206) —

5,697 400 —
(169,888) (83,467) (129,990)
81,905 26,572 36,283
51,533 — —

6,562 6,486 7,189

28,597 1,091 24,778

1,403 (33) 1,655
(179,653) (88,352) 116,830
33,774 10,710 13,240
— 50,288 (50,288)
(541,063) (151,828) (113,077)
687,181 160,568 558,037
(43,608) — —
(550,231) (150,965) (330,131)
3,590 542 1,106

— 13,825 —

(4,800) (2,866) 610
(1,700) — (1,709)
(596,749) (139,464) (330,124)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

19



CSC HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corporation)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
(See Note 2)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from credit facility debt...........ccooceeviiieniieiiieieee

Repayment of credit facility debt ...........ccooeeevivcieniiceniciiieiees

Proceeds from issuance of senior notes
Proceeds from collateralized indebtedness

Repayment of collateralized indebtedness and related derivative
COMITACTS ..ottt

Redemption of senior notes, including premiums and fees.............
Repayment of notes payable...........cccooeeriiiiiiiieniieeeeeeeee
Contribution from CablevisSion...........cccecieeririnienenenenenenenenne
Distributions to CableViSion ............cceveererieriiieneseeeeseeeeieene

Principal payments on capital lease obligations

Additions to deferred financing COStS.......ooveriereerierieneeeneeeenee

Tax withholding associated with shares issued for equity-based
AWATAS ..ottt e et e s v e et esb e e raeeabeebaeeaeeree s

Contributions from noncontrolling interests, net.............ccoeceevenene
Excess tax benefit related to share-based awards..........c.cccceeeennee
Distributions to noncontrolling interests, Net ..........c..ceccverererennene

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities....................

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted
cash from continuing Operations ...........ccceeeereeeeneeseneeneneeneene

Cash flows of discontinued operations:
Net cash used in operating activities ..........ecevveeveerreereereereeseeniennens

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued
OPECTALIONS ....vvevveeienreeerereenresteeseeeseesesseesesseessesssessesssessesssensenns

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period....

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period...............

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months
Ended June 21, 2016 January 1,
September 30,  to September 2016 to June
2017 30,2016 20,2016

4,343,750 $ 595,000 |$ —
(2,866,506) (329,500) (14,953)
— 1,310,000 —
662,724 179,388 337,149
(654,989) (143,102) (281,594)
(350,120) — —
24,649 — (1,291)
350,120 — —
(1,663,734) (57,877) (144,318)
(10,954) 4,511) (11,552)
(6,142) (180,067) —

— (50,288) —

— — 240

— — 50,288

(335) — —
(171,537) 1,319,043 (66,031)
(81,105) 1,340,147 161,882
— — (21,000)
— — (21,000)
232,441 151,152 997,427
151,336 $ 1,491,299 |$ 1,138,309

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS, RELATED MATTERS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The Company and Related Matters

Cablevision Systems Corporation ("Cablevision"), through its wholly-owned subsidiary CSC Holdings, LLC ("CSC
Holdings," and collectively with Cablevision, the "Company"), owns and operates cable systems and owns companies
that provide regional news, local programming and advertising sales services for the cable television industry and
Ethernet-based data, Internet, voice and video transport and managed services to the business market. The Company
operates and reports financial information in one segment. Prior to the sale of a 75% interest in Newsday LLC on July 7,
2016, the Company consolidated the operating results of Newsday. Effective July 7, 2016, the operating results of
Newsday are no longer consolidated with those of the Company and the Company's 25% interest in the operating results
of Newsday is recorded on the equity method (see Note 13).

As aresult of the Cablevision Acquisition, discussed below, Cablevision is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Altice USA,
Inc. ("Altice USA™).

Cablevision Acquisition

On June 21, 2016 (the "Cablevision Acquisition Date"), pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger
Agreement"), dated as of September 16, 2015, by and among Cablevision, Altice N.V. ("Altice N.V."), Neptune Merger
Sub Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Altice N.V. ("Merger Sub"), Merger Sub merged with and into Cablevision,
with Cablevision surviving the merger (the "Cablevision Acquisition").

In connection with the Cablevision Acquisition, each outstanding share of the Cablevision NY Group Class A common
stock, par value $0.01 per share ("CNYG Class A Shares"), and Cablevision NY Group Class B common stock, par
value $0.01 per share ("CNYG Class B Shares", and together with the CNYG Class A Shares, the "Shares") other than
Shares owned by Cablevision, Altice N.V. or any of their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries, in each case not held
on behalf of third parties in a fiduciary capacity, received $34.90 in cash without interest, less applicable tax withholdings
(the "Cablevision Acquisition Consideration").

Pursuant to an agreement, dated December 21, 2015, by and among CVC 2 B.V., CIE Management IX Limited, for and
on behalf of the limited partnerships BC European Capital IX-1 through 11 and Canada Pension Plan Investment Board,
certain affiliates of BCP and CPPIB (the "Co-Investors") funded approximately $1,000,000 toward the payment of the
aggregate Cablevision Acquisition Consideration, and indirectly acquired approximately 30% of the Shares of
Cablevision.

Also in connection with the Cablevision Acquisition, outstanding equity-based awards granted under Cablevision’s
equity plans were cancelled and converted into cash based upon the $34.90 per Share Cablevision Acquisition price in
accordance with the original terms of the awards. The total consideration for the outstanding CNYG Class A Shares, the
outstanding CNYG Class B Shares, and the equity-based awards amounted to $9,958,323.

In connection with the Cablevision Acquisition, in October 2015, Neptune Finco Corp. ("Finco"), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Altice N.V. formed to complete the financing described herein and the merger with CSC Holdings,
borrowed an aggregate principal amount of $3,800,000 under a term loan facility (the "Term Credit Facility") and entered
into revolving loan commitments in an aggregate principal amount of $2,000,000 (the "Revolving Credit Facility" and,
together with the Term Credit Facility, the "Credit Facilities").

Finco also issued $1,800,000 aggregate principal amount of 10.125% senior notes due 2023 (the "2023 Notes"),
$2,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 10.875% senior notes due 2025 (the "2025 Notes"), and $1,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of 6.625% senior guaranteed notes due 2025 (the "2025 Guaranteed Notes") (collectively the
"Cablevision Acquisition Notes").

On June 21, 2016, immediately following the Cablevision Acquisition, Finco merged with and into CSC Holdings, with
CSC Holdings surviving the merger (the "CSC Holdings Merger"), and the Merger Notes and the Credit Facilities became
obligations of CSC Holdings. In connection with the CSC Holdings Merger, the Company recorded $304,362 to
accumulated deficit representing the results of operations, net of income taxes, of Finco for the period prior to the
Cablevision Acquisition.
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Cablevision and CSC Holdings have been
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Accordingly, these financial
statements do not include all the information and notes required for complete annual financial statements.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2016.

The financial statements presented in this report are unaudited; however, in the opinion of management, such financial
statements include all adjustments, consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation
of the results for the periods presented.

In the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets of Cablevision and CSC Holdings, the consideration paid
by Altice N.V. and the Co- Investors in connection with the Cablevision Acquisition has been "pushed down" to
Cablevision and CSC Holdings and has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards
Codification Topic ("ASC") 805, Business Combinations. Due to the impact of push down accounting, Cablevision's
and CSC Holdings' financial statements are presented in two distinct periods to indicate the application of the different
bases of accounting between the periods presented: (1) the periods prior to the Cablevision Acquisition date, January 1,
2016 through June 20, 2016 labeled "Predecessor" and (2) the periods subsequent to the Cablevision Acquisition date,
June 21, 2016 through September 30, 2016, the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, and the three months
ended September 30, 2016 labeled "Successor”. The accompanying financial statements include a black line division
to indicate the application of the bases of accounting utilized by the Predecessor and Successor reporting entities. As a
result, the financial statements for the Predecessor periods and for the Successor periods are not comparable.

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements of Cablevision include the accounts of Cablevision and
its majority-owned subsidiaries and the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements of CSC Holdings
include the accounts of CSC Holdings and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Cablevision has no business operations
independent of its CSC Holdings subsidiary, whose operating results and financial position are consolidated into
Cablevision. The consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations of Cablevision are essentially identical to
the consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations of CSC Holdings, with the following significant exceptions:
Cablevision has $1,899,024 principal amount of senior notes outstanding at September 30, 2017 that were issued to third
party investors, cash, accrued interest related to its senior notes, and deferred taxes on its balance sheet. In addition,
CSC Holdings and its subsidiaries have certain intercompany receivables from and payables to Cablevision. Differences
between Cablevision's results of operations and those of CSC Holdings primarily include incremental interest expense,
interest income, loss on extinguishment of debt, and income tax expense or benefit. CSC Holdings' results of operations
for 2016 periods include incremental interest income from the Cablevision senior notes held by Newsday Holdings
through July 7, 2016 (see Note 13), which has been eliminated in Cablevision's results of operations.

The combined notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements relate to the Company, which, except as noted,
are essentially identical for Cablevision and CSC Holdings. All significant intercompany transactions and balances
between Cablevision and CSC Holdings and their respective consolidated subsidiaries are eliminated in both sets of
consolidated financial statements. Intercompany transactions between Cablevision and CSC Holdings are not eliminated
in the CSC Holdings consolidated financial statements, but are eliminated in the Cablevision consolidated financial
statements.

The results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that might be expected for
future interim periods or for the full year ending December 31, 2017.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

provides simplification of income tax accounting for share-based payment awards. The new guidance became effective
for the Company on January 1, 2017. Amendments related to the timing of when excess tax benefits are recognized,
minimum statutory withholding requirements, forfeitures, and intrinsic value will be applied using the modified
retrospective transition method. Amendments requiring recognition of excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies in the
income statement and the practical expedient for estimating expected term were applied prospectively. The Company
elected to apply the amendments related to the presentation of excess tax benefits on the statement of cash flows using
the prospective transition method. In connection with the adoption on January 1, 2017, a deferred tax asset of $308,231
and $143,859 for previously unrealized excess tax benefits was recognized with the offset recorded to accumulated
deficit at Cablevision and CSC Holdings, respectively.

Recently Issued But Not Yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Compensation- Stock Compensation (Topic 718). ASU No. 2017-09
provides clarity and guidance on which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an
entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. ASU No. 2017-09 becomes effective for the Company on January
1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied prospectively.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07 Compensation-Retirement Benefits (Topic 715). ASU No. 2017-07
requires that an employer disaggregate the service cost component from the other components of net benefit cost. It also
provides guidance on how to present the service cost component and the other components of net benefit cost in the
income statement and what component of net benefit cost is eligible for capitalization. ASU No. 2017-07 becomes
effective for the Company on January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied retrospectively. The
Company has not yet completed the evaluation of the effect that ASU No. 2017-07 will have on its consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350). ASU No. 2017-04
simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by removing the second step of the two-step impairment test. The
amendment requires an entity to perform its annual, or interim goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of
areporting unit with its carrying amount. An entity still has the option to perform the qualitative assessment for a reporting
unit to determine if the quantitative impairment test is necessary. ASU No. 2017-04 becomes effective for the Company
on January 1, 2020 with early adoption permitted and will be applied prospectively.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805), Clarifying the Definition of
a Business, which amends Topic 805 to interpret the definition of a business by adding guidance to assist in evaluating
whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The new guidance
becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied prospectively.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain
Cash Receipts and Cash Payments which clarifies how entities should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments
on the statement of cash flows. ASU No. 2016-15 also clarifies how the predominance principle should be applied when
cash receipts and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows. The new guidance becomes effective
for the Company on January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied retrospectively. The Company
has not yet completed the evaluation of the effect that ASU No. 2016-15 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which increases transparency and comparability by
recognizing a lessee’s rights and obligations resulting from leases by recording them on the balance sheet as lease assets
and lease liabilities. The new guidance becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2019 with early adoption
permitted and will be applied using the modified retrospective method. The Company has not yet completed the evaluation
of the effect that ASU No. 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10), Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. ASU No. 2016-01 modifies how entities measure certain
equity investments and also modifies the recognition of changes in the fair value of financial liabilities measured under
the fair value option. Entities will be required to measure equity investments that do not result in consolidation and are
not accounted for under the equity method at fair value and recognize any changes in fair value in net income. For
financial liabilities measured using the fair value option, entities will be required to record changes in fair value caused
by a change in instrument-specific credit risk (own credit risk) separately in other comprehensive income. ASU No.
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

2016-01 becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The Company has not yet completed the evaluation
of the effect that ASU No. 2016-01 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, requiring an entity to
recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers. ASU No. 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes
effective and allows the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. In August 2015, the FASB
issued ASU No. 2015-14 that approved deferring the effective date by one year so that ASU No. 2014-09 would become
effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The FASB also approved, in July 2015, permitting the early adoption
of ASU No. 2014-09, but not before the original effective date for the Company of January 1, 2017.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-20, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, in order to clarify the Codification and to correct any unintended application of the
guidance. These items are not expected to have a significant effect on the current accounting standard. The amendments
in this update affect the guidance in ASU No. 2014-09, which is not yet effective. ASU No. 2014-09 will be effective
January 1, 2018 for the Company, reflecting the one-year deferral. Early adoption of the standard is permitted but not
before the original effective date. Companies can transition to the standard either retrospectively or as a cumulative-
effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption
of ASU No. 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and selecting the method of transition to the new
standard. The Company currently expects the adoption to impact the timing of the recognition of residential installation
revenue and the recognition of commission expenses.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2016 financial statements to conform to the 2017 presentation.
Income (Loss) Per Share

Net loss per share for Cablevision for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, for the three months ended
September 30, 2016, and for the period June 21, 2016 through September 30, 2016 (Successor) is not presented since
Cablevision's common stock is no longer publicly traded.

Net income (loss) per membership unit for CSC Holdings is not presented since CSC Holdings is a limited liability
company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision.

NOTE 3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Cablevision Acquisition

As discussed in Note 1, the Cablevision Acquisition was completed on June 21, 2016. The Cablevision Acquisition was
accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC Topic 805. Accordingly, the Successor financial
statements reflect a new basis of accounting based on the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the Company on the
Cablevision Acquisition Date and therefore are not comparable to the financial statements of the Predecessor period.

The following table provides the allocation of the total purchase price of $9,958,323 to the identifiable tangible and
intangible assets and liabilities of Cablevision based on their respective fair values. The remaining useful lives represent
the period over which acquired tangible and intangible assets with a finite life are being depreciated or amortized.
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

(Unaudited)
Fair Values Estimated Useful Lives
CULTENE ASSELS ...veveeeieeeeeesietsesescseseseseseseses s sseseseseseseses e eaesssssesesssesssesssssensssasasnes $ 1,923,071
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE ...ttt et saeeeeaaeeennes 271,305
Property, plant and €qUIPMENL...............cceeveieierierieeriiiecreereeeereee et 4,864,621 2-18 years
GOOAWILL.....eeie ettt ee 5,842,172
Indefinite-lived cable television franchises............ccccccveeveeviecieceeecieeee e, 8,113,575 Indefinite-lived
Customer relationShiPS..........ceeveieierieiieiiceeeereee ettt ettt s s 4,850,000 8 to 18 years
Trade NAMES (2) ....vecveeveeeeeeeerereeeeteee et ettt ettt eteeteeteeveeteereensenseeseesesreereens 1,010,000 12 years
Amortizable intangible assets... 23,296 1-15 years
Other NON-CUITENT ASSELS........ccoviieeieeeeeeeeeee et eeee e et e eeeeeeae e et eeeeaeeeeeeesaeeseaeeas 748,998
Current Habilities ........ccoeivieiiieieiiieieieeeee ettt aens (2,311,201)
Long-term debt.......cocuiieiiieieieiecteeeee ettt (8,355,386)
Deferred INCOME tAXES. .......cocuiiieieeeeee ettt e et e et e st e seeeesaeeenes (6,832,773)
(189,355)

$ 9,958,323

(a) See Note 15 for additional information regarding a change in the remaining estimated useful lives of the

Company's trade names.

Transaction costs that were contingent upon the consummation of the Cablevision Acquisition aggregating $34,227
($7,633 was paid to arelated party) were recorded on the black line and therefore are not reflected in either the Predecessor
or Successor periods. See Note 7 for a discussion of transaction costs that were expensed in the Predecessor and Successor
periods. Inaddition, unrecognized actuarial losses, net of taxes, related to the Company's employee benefit plans included
in accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet of approximately $36,115 were reset to zero in
connection with the Cablevision Acquisition.

The fair value of customer relationships and cable television franchises were valued using derivations of the "income"
approach. The future expected earnings from these assets were discounted to their present value equivalent.

Trade names were valued using the relief from royalty method, which is based on the present value of the royalty
payments avoided as a result of the company owning the intangible asset.

The basis for the valuation methods was the Company’s projections. These projections were based on management’s
assumptions including among others, penetration rates for video, high speed data, and voice; revenue growth rates;
operating margins; and capital expenditures. The assumptions are derived based on the Company’s and its peers’ historical
operating performance adjusted for current and expected competitive and economic factors surrounding the cable
industry. The discount rates used in the analysis are intended to reflect the risk inherent in the projected future cash
flows generated by the respective intangible asset. The value is highly dependent on the achievement of the future
financial results contemplated in the projections. The estimates and assumptions made in the valuation are inherently
subject to significant uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company's control, and there is no assurance that
these results can be achieved. The primary assumptions for which there is a reasonable possibility of the occurrence of
a variation that would have significantly affected the value include the assumptions regarding revenue growth,
programming expense growth rates, the amount and timing of capital expenditures and the discount rate utilized.

In establishing fair value for the vast majority of the acquired property, plant and equipment, the cost approach was
utilized. The cost approach considers the amount required to replace an asset by constructing or purchasing a new asset
with similar utility, then adjusts the value in consideration of physical depreciation, and functional and economic
obsolescence as of the appraisal date. The cost approach relies on management’s assumptions regarding current material
and labor costs required to rebuild and repurchase significant components of our property, plant and equipment along
with assumptions regarding the age and estimated useful lives of our property, plant and equipment.
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

The estimates of expected useful lives take into consideration the effects of contractual relationships, customer attrition,
eventual development of new technologies and market competition.

Long-term debt assumed was valued using quoted market prices (Level 2). The carrying value of most other assets and
liabilities approximated fair value as of the acquisition date.

As aresult of applying business combination accounting, the Company recorded goodwill, which represented the excess
of organization value over amounts assigned to the other identifiable tangible and intangible assets arising from
expectations of future operational performance and cash generation.

The following table presents the unaudited pro forma revenue and net loss for the period presented as if the Cablevision
Acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2016:

Cablevision ~ CSC Holdings

Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2016
REVEINUE ......ooiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee ettt et e ettt e e et ae e e s enaaeeeeenes $ 4,936,163 $ 4,936,163
N L LOSS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et e eteereersereensert et e ereereereereerean $ (416,228) $ (324,387)

The pro forma results presented above include the impact of additional amortization expense related to the identifiable
intangible assets recorded in connection with the Cablevision Acquisition, additional depreciation expense related to
the fair value adjustment to property, plant and equipment and the incremental interest resulting from the issuance of
debt to fund the Cablevision Acquisition, net of the reversal of interest and amortization of deferred financing costs
related to credit facilities that were repaid on the date of the Cablevision Acquisition and the accretion/amortization of
fair value adjustments associated with the long-term debt acquired.

Acquisition

In connection with the acquisition of an entity in the first quarter of 2017, the Company recorded amortizable intangibles
0f'$45,000 relating to customer relationships and $9,400 relating to other amortizable intangibles. The Company recorded
goodwill of $20,687, which represents the excess of the purchase price of approximately $75,000 over the net book
value of assets acquired. These values are based on preliminary fair value information currently available, which is
subject to change within the measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date).

NOTE 4. DIVIDENDS

The Company made cash distributions of $925,262 to Altice USA during the nine months ended September 30, 2017,
$500,000 of which were funded with proceeds from borrowings under CSC Holdings' revolving credit facility.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Cablevision was not permitted to declare and pay dividends or repurchase
stock, in each case, without the prior written consent of Altice N.V. In accordance with these terms, Cablevision did
not declare dividends during the period January 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016 (Predecessor).

During the period January 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016 (Predecessor), Cablevision paid $4,066 related to restricted
shares that vested in respect of dividends declared and accrued on the CNYG common stock in prior periods. In addition,
on June 21, 2016 approximately $3,773 of accrued dividends were paid on restricted shares and performance restricted
stock units that vested in connection with the Cablevision Acquisition.

CSC Holdings made cash equity distribution payments to Cablevision aggregating $1,663,734, $57,877 and $144,318,
during the nine months ended September 30, 2017 (Successor), during the period June 21, 2016 through September 30,
2016 (Successor) and during the period January 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016 (Predecessor), respectively. These
distribution payments were funded from cash on hand and with proceeds from borrowings under CSC Holdings' revolving
credit facility. The proceeds were used to fund:

+  Cablevision distributions to Altice USA (Successor period only);

+  Cablevision's principal and interest payments on its senior notes (Predecessor and Successor);

+  Cablevision's payments in respect of dividends declared and accrued in prior periods related to restricted shares
that vested (Predecessor period only); and
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

* Cablevision's payments for the acquisition of treasury shares related to statutory minimum tax withholding
obligations upon the vesting of certain restricted shares (Predecessor period only).

Cablevision's and CSC Holdings' indentures and CSC Holdings' credit agreement restrict the amount of dividends and
distributions in respect of any equity interest that can be made.

NOTE 5. GROSS VERSUS NET REVENUE RECOGNITION

In the normal course of business, the Company is assessed non-income related taxes by governmental authorities,
including franchising authorities (generally under multi-year agreements), and collects such taxes from its customers.
The Company's policy is that, in instances where the tax is being assessed directly on the Company, amounts paid to the
governmental authorities and amounts received from the customers are recorded on a gross basis. That is, amounts paid
to the governmental authorities are recorded as programming and other direct costs and amounts received from the
customer are recorded as revenue.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 (Successor), the amount of franchise fees and certain other
taxes and fees included as a component of revenue aggregated $52,594 and $158,663, respectively.

For the three months ended September 30, 2016 (Successor), the period June 21, 2016 through September 30, 2016
(Successor) and the period January 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016 (Predecessor), the amount of franchise fees and
certain other taxes and fees included as a component of revenue aggregated $50,135, $55,760 and $95,432,
respectively.

NOTE 6. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The Company considers the balance of its investment in funds that substantially hold securities that mature within three
months or less from the date the fund purchases these securities to be cash equivalents. The carrying amount of cash
and cash equivalents either approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments or are at fair
value.

The Company's non-cash investing and financing activities and other supplemental data were as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Nine months ended June 21, 2016 to
September 30, September 30, January 1, 2016 to
2017 2016 June 20, 2016

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities of Cablevision

and CSC Holdings:

Property and equipment accrued but unpaid $ 54,795 $ 61,816 |$ 68,356

Notes payable to Vendor ..........cocevererieieienienienereneneseneene 22,796 — —

Leasehold improvements paid by landlord.............ccccoueuenee. 1,999 — —

Intangible asset 0bligations. ........c.cecerveerereerenieeneeeeeee — — 290

Deferred financing costs accrued but unpaid — 1,570 —
Supplemental Data:
Continuing Operations - Cablevision:

Cash interest paid..........ccoeeieinieininieineeee e 986,570 539,563 258,940

Income taxes paid, Nt ........ccecvevverieriirieieieieieeee e 5,068 10 7,082
Continuing Operations - CSC Holdings:

Cash interest paid.........cccceveieinieiininieineeeeeeeeeeee 839,712 481,685 151,991

Income taxes paid, NEt .......c.coevrirriineniiinieeneeeecreeeenee 328,379 10 7,082

The net cash used in connection with the consummation of the Cablevision Acquisition aggregating $987,158 was
recorded on the black line and therefore is not reflected in either the Predecessor or Successor periods.
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NOTE 7. RESTRUCTURING COSTS AND OTHER EXPENSE

Subsequent to the Cablevision Acquisition, the Company commenced its restructuring initiatives (the "2016 Restructuring
Plan") that are intended to simplify the Company's organizational structure. Such costs are classified in restructuring
and other expense in the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The following table summarizes the activity for the 2016 Restructuring Plan during 2017:

Severance and Facility
Other Employee  Realignment and
Related Costs Other Costs Total
Accrual balance at December 31, 2016 ........c..ccooveveveeecveerecreenenene $ 85329 §$ 7,954 $ 93,283
Restructuring charges...........cecueeveeieeeierieieeecece et 103,361 253 103,614
Payments and Other...........c.ccoovievieieiiieieecece e (78,069) (3,262) (81,331)
Accrual balance at September 30, 2017.........ccoeeverivieeniiieeieennne $ 110,621 §$ 4,945 $ 115,566

The Company recorded net restructuring charges of $131,278 during the 2016 Successor period June 21, 2016 through
September 30, 2016 related to the 2016 Restructuring Plan and $2,299 during the 2016 Predecessor period January 1,
2016 through June 20, 2016 reflecting adjustments related to prior restructuring plans.

Cumulative costs to date relating to the 2016 Restructuring Plan amounted to $302,871.

Transaction Costs

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, the Company incurred transaction costs of $1,248 and $1,568
related to the acquisition of a business during the first quarter of 2017 and other transactions. During the three months
ended September 30, 2016 and for the 2016 Predecessor period January 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016, the Company
incurred transaction costs of $239 and $19,924, respectively.

NOTE 8. DEBT
Credit Facility

On October 9, 2015, Finco, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Altice N.V., which merged with and into CSC
Holdings on June 21, 2016, entered into a senior secured credit facility, which currently provides U.S. dollar term loans
currently in an aggregate principal amount of $3,000,000 ($2,992,500 outstanding at September 30, 2017) (the “Term
Loan Facility”, and the term loans extended under the Term Loan Facility, the “CSC Holdings Term Loans™) and U.S.
dollar revolving loan commitments in an aggregate principal amount of $2,300,000 (the “Revolving Credit Facility”
and, together with the Term Loan Facility, the “Credit Facilities”), which are governed by a credit facilities agreement
entered into by, inter alios, CSC Holdings, certain lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as administrative
agent and security agent (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified on June 20, 2016, June 21, 2016,
July 21,2016, September 9,2016, December 9,2016,and March 15,2017, respectively, and as further amended, restated,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Facilities Agreement”).

The amendment to the CSC Holdings Credit Facilities Agreement entered into on March 15, 2017 (“Extension
Amendment”) increased the Term Loan by $500,000 to $3,000,000 and the maturity date for this facility was extended
to July 17, 2025. The closing of the Extension Amendment occurred in April 2017 and the proceeds were used to
refinance the entire $2,493,750 principal amount of existing Term Loans and redeem $500,000 of the 8.625% Senior
Notes due September 2017 issued by Cablevision. In connection with the Extension Amendment and the redemption
of the senior notes, the Company recorded a loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred financing costs
aggregating $18,976.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2017, CSC Holdings borrowed $1,350,000 under its revolving credit
facility ($500,000 was used to make cash distributions to Altice USA) and made voluntary repayments aggregating
$350,256 with cash on hand. In October 2017, CSC Holdings made a voluntary repayment on the revolving credit
facility of $50,000. This amount was reclassified from long term debt to current debt on the consolidated balance sheet
as of September 30, 2017.
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Under the Extension Amendment, the Company is required to make scheduled quarterly payments equal to 0.25% (or
$7,500) of the principal amount of the Term Loan, with the remaining balance scheduled to be paid on July 17, 2025,
beginning with the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2017.

The Credit Facilities permit CSC Holdings to request revolving loans, swing line loans or letters of credit from the
revolving lenders, swingline lenders or issuing banks, as applicable, thereunder, from time to time prior to November
30, 2021, unless the commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility have been previously terminated.

Loans comprising each eurodollar borrowing or alternate base rate borrowing, as applicable, bear interest at a rate per
annum equal to the adjusted LIBO rate or the alternate base rate, as applicable, plus the applicable margin, where the
applicable margin is:

* inrespect of the Term Loans, (i) with respect to any alternate base rate loan, 1.25% per annum and (ii) with
respect to any eurodollar loan, 2.25% per annum, and

* in respect of Revolving Credit Facility loans (i) with respect to any alternate base rate loan, 2.25% per
annum and (ii) with respect to any eurodollar loan, 3.25% per annum.

The Credit Facilities Agreement requires the prepayment of outstanding Term Loans, subject to certain exceptions and
deductions, with (i) 100% of the net cash proceeds of certain asset sales, subject to reinvestment rights and certain other
exceptions; and (ii) commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2017, a pari ratable share (based on the
outstanding principal amount of the Term Loans divided by the sum of the outstanding principal amount of all pari passu
indebtedness and the Term Loans) of 50% of annual excess cash flow, which will be reduced to 0% if the consolidated
net senior secured leverage ratio of CSC Holdings is less than or equal to 4.5 to 1.

The obligations under the Credit Facilities are guaranteed by each restricted subsidiary of CSC Holdings (other than
CSC TKR, LLC and its subsidiaries and certain excluded subsidiaries) (the “Initial Guarantors™) and, subject to certain
limitations, will be guaranteed by each future material wholly-owned restricted subsidiary of CSC Holdings. The
obligations under the Credit Facilities (including any guarantees thereof) are secured on a first priority basis, subject to
any liens permitted by the Credit Facilities, by capital stock held by CSC Holdings or any guarantor in certain subsidiaries
of CSC Holdings, subject to certain exclusions and limitations.

The Credit Facilities Agreement includes certain negative covenants which, among other things and subject to certain
significant exceptions and qualifications, limit CSC Holdings' ability and the ability of its restricted subsidiaries to:
(i) incur or guarantee additional indebtedness, (ii) make investments, (iii) create liens, (iv) sell assets and subsidiary
stock, (v) pay dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem our capital stock or subordinated debt,
(vi) engage in certain transactions with affiliates, (vii) enter into agreements that restrict the payment of dividends by
subsidiaries or the repayment of intercompany loans and advances; and (viii) engage in mergers or consolidations. In
addition, the Revolving Credit Facility includes a financial maintenance covenant solely for the benefit of the lenders
under the Revolving Credit Facility consisting of a maximum consolidated net senior secured leverage ratio of CSC
Holdings and its restricted subsidiaries of 5.0 to 1.0. The financial covenant will be tested on the last day of any fiscal
quarter, but only if on such day there are outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility (including swingline
loans but excluding any cash collateralized letters of credit and undrawn letters of credit not to exceed $15,000).

The Credit Facilities Agreement also contains certain customary representations and warranties, affirmative covenants
and events of default (including, among others, an event of default upon a change of control). If an event of default
occurs, the lenders under the Credit Facilities will be entitled to take various actions, including the acceleration of
amounts due under the Credit Facilities and all actions permitted to be taken by a secured creditor.

CSC Holdings was in compliance with all of its financial covenants under the Credit Facilities as of September 30, 2017.
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The following table provides details of the Company's outstanding credit facility debt:

Carrying Value (a)
Maturity Interest September 30, December 31,
Date Rate Principal 2017 2016
Restricted Group:
Revolving Credit Facility (b) $20,000 on October 9, 2020,
remaining balance on November 30,
2021 4.49% $ 1,175,000 $ 1,149,024 $ 145,013
Term Loan Facility ............... July 17, 2025 3.48% 2,992,500 2,974,768 2,486,874
4,167,500 4,123,792 2,631,887
Less: Current portion 80,000 25,000
$ 4,043,792 $ 2,606,887

The carrying amount is net of the unamortized deferred financing costs and/or discounts/premiums.

At September 30,2017, $123,473 of the revolving credit facility was restricted for certain letters of credit issued
on behalf of the Company and $1,001,527 of the facility was undrawn and available, subject to covenant
limitations.

(@)
(b)

Senior Guaranteed Notes and Senior Notes and Debentures

The following table summarizes the Company's senior guaranteed notes, senior secured notes and senior notes and
debentures:

Carrying Amount at (a)
Interest Principal September 30, December 31,

Issuer Date Issued Maturity Date Rate Amount 2017 2016
CSC Holdings (b)(e)  February 6, 1998 February 15,2018 7.875% $ 300,000 § 303,531 $ 310,334
CSC Holdings (b)(e)  July 21, 1998 July 15,2018 7.625% 500,000 511,312 521,654
CSC Holdings (c)(e). February 12, 2009 February 15, 2019 8.625% 526,000 544,422 553,804
CSC Holdings (c)(e). November 15,2011 November 15, 2021 6.750% 1,000,000 957,954 951,702
CSC Holdings (c)(e). May 23,2014 June 1, 2024 5.250% 750,000 657,903 650,193
CSC Holdings (d)..... October 9, 2015 January 15, 2023 10.125% 1,800,000 1,777,085 1,774,750
CSC Holdings (d)(g)  October 9, 2015 October 15, 2025 10.875% 1,684,221 1,660,583 1,970,379
CSC Holdings (d)..... October 9, 2015 October 15, 2025 6.625% 1,000,000 986,394 985,469
CSC Holdings (f) September 23,2016  April 15, 2027 5.500% 1,310,000 1,304,353 1,304,025
Total CSC HOLIAINGS ......cvoviieveiieiieiciieeieteeet ettt 8,870,221 8,703,537 9,022,310
Cablevision (h)......... September 23, 2009  September 15, 2017 8.625% — — 926,045
Cablevision (c)(e)..... April 15,2010 April 15,2018 7.750% 750,000 757,515 767,545
Cablevision (c)(e)..... April 15,2010 April 15,2020 8.000% 500,000 491,224 488,992
Cablevision (c)(e)..... September 27,2012 September 15, 2022 5.875% 649,024 568,797 559,500
Total CabLEVISION .........eiieiiiiiee ettt ettt et e e et e st e e saeeenes 10,769,245 10,521,073 11,764,392
Less: Current portion .... 1,572,358 926,045

LONG-EIMN AEDE.......oeiiiiitie ettt ettt ereeene

(a)
(b)

30

The debentures are not redeemable by CSC Holdings prior to maturity.

$ 8,948,715 $ 10,838,347

The carrying amount is net of the unamortized deferred financing costs and/or discounts/premiums.
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(Unaudited)
(©) Notes are redeemable at any time at a specified "make-whole" price plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date.
(d) The Company may redeem some or all of the 2023 Notes at any time on or after January 15, 2019, and some

or all of the 2025 Notes and 2025 Guaranteed Notes at any time on or after October 15, 2020, at the redemption
prices set forth in the relevant indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. The Company may also
redeem up to 40% of each series of these notes using the proceeds of certain equity offerings before October
15, 2018, at a redemption price equal to 110.125% for the 2023 Notes, 110.875% for the 2025 Notes and
106.625% for the 2025 Guaranteed Notes, in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, at any
time prior to January 15, 2019, CSC Holdings may redeem some or all of the 2023 Notes, and at any time prior
to October 15, 2020, the Company may redeem some or all of the 2025 Notes and the 2025 Guaranteed Notes,
at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus a “make whole” premium specified in the relevant
indenture plus accrued and unpaid interest.

(e) The carrying value of the notes was adjusted to reflect their fair value on the Cablevision Acquisition Date
(aggregate reduction of $52,788).

® The 2027 Guaranteed Notes are redeemable at any time on or after April 15, 2022 at the redemption prices set
forth in the indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In addition, up to 40% may be redeemed for
each series of the 2027 Guaranteed Notes using the proceeds of certain equity offerings before October 15,
2019, at a redemption price equal to 105.500%, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

(2) In July 2017, the Company used the $350,120 contribution from Altice USA to fund the redemption of $315,779
principal amount of CSC Holdings senior notes due October 2025, and the related call premium of approximately
$34,341 which was recorded as a loss on extinguishment of debt. The Company also recorded a write-off of
deferred financings costs in connection with this redemption aggregating $4,516.

(h) In April 2017, the Company redeemed $500,000 of the senior notes from proceeds from the Term Loan facility.
In September 2017, these senior notes matured and the Company repaid the remaining principal balance of
$400,000.

The indentures under which the senior notes and debentures were issued contain various covenants. The Company was
in compliance with all of its financial covenants under these indentures as of September 30, 2017.

Summary of Debt Maturities

The future maturities of debt payable by the Company under its various debt obligations outstanding as of September 30,
2017, including notes payable, collateralized indebtedness (see Note 9), and capital leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Cablevision CSC Holdings
2017 ettt ettt $ 29,925 $ 29,925
2018 ettt ettt b et ettt ettt ebeneene e 1,598,699 848,699
2019 ettt ettt 561,995 561,995
2020 1ttt bttt b et ekttt b et ebeneene 530,007 30,007
2021 1ttt etttk ettt 3,664,638 3,664,638
TRETEATTET et e et e e e et e e e e e e e e e e seee e eeeeeeeeeeeenaaas 10,058,245 9,409,221
NOTE 9. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS AND COLLATERALIZED INDEBTEDNESS

The Company has entered into various transactions to limit the exposure against equity price risk on its shares of Comcast
Corporation ("Comcast") common stock. The Company has monetized all of its stock holdings in Comcast through the
execution of prepaid forward contracts, collateralized by an equivalent amount of the respective underlying stock. At
maturity, the contracts provide for the option to deliver cash or shares of Comcast stock with a value determined by
reference to the applicable stock price at maturity. These contracts, at maturity, are expected to offset declines in the
fair value of these securities below the hedge price per share while allowing the Company to retain upside appreciation
from the hedge price per share to the relevant cap price.
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The following represents the location of the assets and liabilities associated with the Company's derivative instruments
within the condensed consolidated balance sheets:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Derivatives Not
Designated as Balance Fair Value at Fair Value at Fair Value at Fair Value at
Hedging Sheet September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
Instruments Location 2017 2016 2017 2016
Prepaid forward contracts Current derivative
contracts $ 54,578 $ 352§ (54,578) $ (13,158)
Prepaid forward contracts ~ Long-term derivative
contracts — 10,604 (52,488) —
$ 54,578 $ 10,956 $ (107,066) $ (13,158)

These prepaid forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes and the related gain
(loss) for all periods presented has been reflected in gain (loss) on derivative contracts, net in the accompanying condensed
consolidated statements of operations.

Settlements of Collateralized Indebtedness

The following table summarizes the settlement of the Company's collateralized indebtedness relating to Comcast shares
that were settled by delivering cash equal to the collateralized loan value, net of the value of the related derivative
contracts during the nine months ended September 30, 2017:

INUMDET OF SNATES (@)....veuviviticiietietieieiert ettt e eteeteete et et et et e besbeete e st e st e st essessessasbesssessessessessessessessessesseeseaseaseas 21,477,618
Collateralized indebtedness SELIEd .............cocuiiuiiiiiiiiiecieceeteee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et easeasene $ (617,151)
Derivative CONLIACES SELIEA. ..........ccveevieeiericie ettt ettt ettt ettt et eeteeteeteersersensenseseeseereeseeseereeneenean (37,838)
(654,989)
Proceeds from new monetization CONTIACES .............oeveeeiuieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteesaeeseseeseteesaeeseseesessessneesans 662,724
INEE CASN PIOCEEAS .....cvvevivievicteeeeete ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e et e ereereeseeseeseese e s es e seeteeseeseeasensensenseeseereereersessereeneens $ 7,735

(a) Shares are adjusted for the 2 for 1 stock split in February 2017.

The cash to settle the collateralized indebtedness was obtained from the proceeds of new monetization contracts covering
an equivalent number of Comcast shares. The terms of the new contracts allow the Company to retain upside participation
in Comcast shares up to each respective contract's upside appreciation limit with downside exposure limited to the
respective hedge price.

In April 2017, the Company entered into new monetization contracts related to 32,153,118 shares of Comcast common
stock held by the Company, which synthetically reversed the existing contracts related to these shares (the "Synthetic
Monetization Closeout"). As the existing collateralized debt matures, the Company will settle the contracts with proceeds
received from the new monetization contracts. The new monetization contracts mature on April 28, 2021. The new
monetization contracts provide the Company with downside protection below the hedge price of $35.47 and upside
benefit of stock price appreciation up to $44.72 per share. In connection with the execution of these contracts, the
Company recorded (i) the fair value of the derivative contracts of $64,793 (in a net asset position), (ii) notes payable of
$111,657, representing the fair value of the existing derivative contracts, in a liability position, and(iii) a discount on
notes payable of $46,864.

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset
or liability based on market data obtained from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect a reporting entity's
pricing based upon their own market assumptions. The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels:

* Level I - Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.
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* Level II - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose
significant value drivers are observable.

*  Level III - Instruments whose significant value drivers are unobservable.

The following table presents for each of these hierarchy levels, the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value September 30,  December 31,

Hierarchy 2017 2016

Assets:

Money market funds (of which $14,700 is classified as restricted cash as

of December 31, 2016) Level I $ 65,801 $ 100,139

Investment securities pledged as collateral............ccooceveverininieneneneneene Level I 1,652,917 1,483,030

Prepaid forward CONtraCtS ........c.evvevvereeieieieieieiere e Level II 54,578 10,956
Liabilities:

Prepaid forward CONtracts ..........ccevereeeririeieieieriesese e Level I1 107,066 13,158

Contingent consideration related to 2017 acquiSition...........cccecevveervererennene Level 111 30,000 —

The Company's cash equivalents, investment securities and investment securities pledged as collateral are classified
within Level I of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted market prices.

The Company's derivative contracts and liabilities under derivative contracts on the Company's balance sheets are valued
using market-based inputs to valuation models. These valuation models require a variety of inputs, including contractual
terms, market prices, yield curves, and measures of volatility. When appropriate, valuations are adjusted for various
factors such as liquidity, bid/offer spreads and credit risk considerations. Such adjustments are generally based on
available market evidence. Since model inputs can generally be verified and do not involve significant management
judgment, the Company has concluded that these instruments should be classified within Level II of the fair value
hierarchy.

The fair value of the contingent consideration related to the acquisition in the first quarter of 2017 was estimated based
on a probability assessment of attaining the targets. The estimated amount recorded as of September 30, 2017 is the full
contractual amount.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair value of each class of financial instruments for which
it is practicable to estimate:

Credit Facility Debt, Collateralized Indebtedness, Senior Notes and Debentures, Senior Guaranteed Notes and Notes
Payable

The fair values of each of the Company's debt instruments are based on quoted market prices for the same or similar
issues or on the current rates offered to the Company for instruments of the same remaining maturities. The fair value
of notes payable is based primarily on the present value of the remaining payments discounted at the borrowing cost.

The carrying values, estimated fair values, and classification under the fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial
instruments, excluding those that are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, are
summarized as follows:
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September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016

Fair Value Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Hierarchy ~ Amount (a)  Fair Value  Amount(a)  Fair Value

Debt instruments:

Credit facility debt ...........ccoeveieieiiiiiieeceeeee Level I $ 4,123,792 $ 4,167,500 $ 2,631,887 $ 2,675,256

Collateralized indebtedness...........c.coeeevvvveeeevvecneeen. Level I1 1,314,788 1,286,557 1,286,069 1,280,048

Senior guaranteed NOES..........ccevververeriereereeeeeereiennas Level 11 2,290,748 2,460,675 2,289,494 2,416,375

Senior notes and debentures................ccoeeveeeevreeeneenen. Level 11 6,412,789 7,421,261 6,732,816 7,731,150

NOtes PAYADIE ......ceeuieeieiiiieieceeeere e Level II 76,442 72,802 13,726 13,260
CSC Holdings total debt inStruments................cceceeveereerrerieseseseenennns 14,218,559 15,408,795 12,953,992 14,116,089

Cablevision Senior NOLES...........cceevveevieeeieeereeereeereeneen Level 11 1,817,536 1,998,340 2,742,082 2,920,056
Cablevision total debt InStruments...............ccecevveevereriecenieeeenieeseeienns $16,036,095 $17,407,135 $15,696,074 $17,036,145
(a) Amounts are net of unamortized deferred financing costs and discounts.

The fair value estimates related to the Company's debt instruments presented above are made at a specific point in time,
based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgments and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

NOTE 11. INCOME TAXES
Cablevision

In general, the Company is required to use an estimated annual effective tax rate to measure the income tax expense or
benefitrecognized in an interim period. The estimated annual effective tax rate is revised on a quarterly basis and therefore
may be different from the rate used in a prior interim period. In addition, certain items included in income tax expense
as well as the tax impact of certain items included in pretax income from continuing operations must be treated as discrete
items. The income tax expense or benefit associated with these discrete items is fully recognized in the interim period

in which the items occur.

In connection with the Cablevision Acquisition, Cablevision joined the federal consolidated and certain state combined
income tax returns filed by Altice USA. For all periods post the Cablevision Acquisition, the income tax provision for
Cablevision is determined on a stand-alone basis as if Cablevision filed separate income tax returns. Inthe fourth quarter
of 2016, Cablevision, CSC Holdings, and Altice USA entered into an income tax sharing agreement under which
Cablevision will have an obligation to Altice USA for current year income taxes on a stand-alone basis.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax benefit amounted to $112,353 and $205,996 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, reflecting an effective tax rate of 42% and 37%, respectively. Nondeductible share-based compensation
resulted in additional deferred tax expense of $4,622 and $11,439 for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively.

Cablevision recorded income tax benefit of $89,157 and $113,258 for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and
the period from June 21 through September 30, 2016, respectively, reflecting an effective tax rate of 40% in both periods.

Cablevision recorded income tax expense of $124,848 for the period January 1 through June 20, 2016. In connection
with the Cablevision Acquisition, certain acquisition-related costs were determined to be nondeductible, resulting in
additional deferred tax expense of $9,392. Absent this item, the effective tax rate would have been 40%.

On January 1, 2017, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-09 using the prospective
transition method related to the presentation of excess tax benefit on the statement of cash flows. In connection with
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the adoption, a deferred tax asset of $308,231 for previously unrealized excess tax benefits related to shared-based
payments was recognized with the offset to accumulated deficit.

As of September 30, 2017, on a stand-alone basis, Cablevision's federal net operating losses (“NOLs”) were
approximately $795,000. The Cablevision Acquisition resulted in an ownership change under the Internal Revenue
Code Section 382 and certain state taxing authorities whereby Cablevision’s NOLs immediately prior to the Cablevision
Acquisition will be subject to certain limitations. As of September 30, 2017, Cablevision NOLs of approximately
$378,000 remain subject to such limitations. Cablevision does not expect such limitations to impact the ability to utilize
the NOLSs prior to their expiration.

CSC Holdings

Income tax benefit amounted to $114,474 and $154,694 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, reflecting an effective tax rate of 50% and 36%, respectively. Nondeductible share-based compensation
resulted in additional deferred tax expense of $4,622 and $11,439 for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively.

CSC Holdings recorded income tax benefit of $71,204 and $92,730 for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and
the period from June 21 through September 30, 2016, respectively, reflecting an effective tax rate of 40% in both periods.

CSC Holdings recorded income tax expense of $179,658 for the period January 1 through June 20, 2016. In connection
with the Cablevision Acquisition, certain acquisition-related costs were determined to be nondeductible, resulting in
additional deferred tax expense of $9,392. Absent this item, the effective tax rate would have been 41%.

In connection with the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, CSC Holdings recognized previously unrealized excess tax benefits
related to share-based payments of $143,859 with the offset recorded to accumulated deficit.

During the second quarter of 2017, CSC Holdings paid $323,311 to Cablevision in partial satisfaction of the liability
recorded pursuant to the income tax sharing agreement.

NOTE 12. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Certain employees of the Company and its affiliates received awards of units in a carry unit plan of Neptune Management
LP, an entity which has an ownership interest in the Company’s parent, Altice USA. The awards generally vest as
follows: 50% on the second anniversary of June 21, 2016 ("Base Date"), 25% on the third anniversary of the Base Date,
and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the Base Date. Neptune Holding US GP LLC, the general partner of Neptune
Management LP, has the right to repurchase (or to assign to an affiliate, including the Company, the right to repurchase)
vested awards held by employees for sixty days following their termination. For performance-based awards under the
plan, vesting occurs upon achievement or satisfaction of a specified performance condition. The Company considered
the probability of achieving the established performance targets in determining the share-based compensation with
respect to these awards at the end of each reporting period. The Carried Unit Plan has 259,442,785 units authorized for
issuance, of which 181,325,001 have been issued to employees of the Company and 45,270,833 have been issued to
employees of Altice N.V. and affiliated companies as of September 30, 2017.

Beginning on the fourth anniversary of the Base Date, the holders of carry units have an annual opportunity (a sixty day
period determined by the administrator of the plan) to sell their units back to Neptune Holding US GP LLC (or affiliate,
including the Company, designated by Neptune Holding US GP LLC). Accordingly, the carry units are presented as
temporary equity on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at each reporting period are
recorded in paid-in capital.

The right of Neptune Holding US GP LLC to assign to an affiliate, including the Company, the right to repurchase an
employee’s vested units during the sixty-day period following termination, or to satisfy its obligation to repurchase an
employee’s vested units during annual 60 day periods following the fourth anniversary of the Base Date, may be exercised
by Neptune Holding US GP LLC in its discretion at the time a repurchase right or obligation arises. The carry unit plan
requires the purchase price payable to the employee or former employee, as the case may be, to be paid in cash, a
promissory note (with a term of not more than 3 years and bearing interest at the long-term applicable federal rate under
Section 1274(d) of the Internal Revenue Code) or combination thereof, in each case as determined by Neptune Holding
US GP LLC in its discretion at the time of the repurchase. Neptune Holding US GP LLC expects that vested units will
be redeemed for shares of the Company's Class A common stock upon vesting.
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The Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for carry units based on the fair value of
the award at grant date. For carry unitawards granted in 2016, an option pricing model was used which requires subjective
assumptions for which changes in these assumptions could materially affect the fair value of the carry units outstanding.
The time to liquidity event assumption was based on management’s judgment. The equity volatility assumption was
estimated using the historical weekly volatility of publicly traded comparable companies. The risk-free rate assumed
was based on the U.S. Constant Maturity Treasury Rates for a period matching the expected time to liquidity event. The
discount for lack of marketability was based on Finnerty's (2012) average-strike put option model.

For carry unit awards granted in the first and second quarter of 2017, the Company estimated the grant date fair value
based on the value established in Altice USA's initial public offering of securities.

The following table summarizes activity relating to Company employees who held carry units:

Number of Weighted

Number of Performance Average Fair

Time Based Vesting Value at Grant

Vesting Awards Awards Date per Unit
Balance, December 31, 2016 (a) 146,550,000 10,000,000 $ 0.37
GIANTEA ...ttt e e 28,025,000 — 3.14
FOTfeited .......coovviiiiiciecc e (3,250,000) — 0.37
Balance, September 30, 2017 171,325,000 10,000,000 0.80

Awards vested at September 30, 2017

(a) Includes awards to employees that transferred to the Company from affiliated entities in June 2017 and during the
third quarter of 2017.

The weighted average fair value per unit was $1.76 and $3.43 as of December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2017,
respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 (Successor), the Company recognized an expense
of $11,555 and $28,597 related to the push down of share-based compensation related to the carry unit plan of which
approximately $11,183 and $27,408 related to units granted to employees of the Company and $372 and $1,189 related
to employees of Altice N.V. and affiliated companies allocated to the Company.

NOTE 13. AFFILIATE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Equity Method Investments

In July 2016, the Company completed the sale of a 75% interest in Newsday LLC ("Newsday") to an employee of the
Company. The Company retained the remaining 25% ownership interest. Effective July 7, 2016, the operating results
of Newsday are no longer consolidated with those of the Company and the Company's 25% interest in the operating
results of Newsday is recorded on the equity basis.

At September 30, 2017, the Company's 25% investment in Newsday and its 25% interest in i24NEWS, Altice N.V.'s
24/7 international news and current affairs channel aggregated $1,694 and is included in investments in affiliates on our
condensed consolidated balance sheet. The operating results of Newsday and i24NEWS are recorded on the equity
basis. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, the Company recorded equity in net loss of Newsday
of $1,034 and $2,571, respectively, and equity in net loss of i24NEWS of $541 and $3,126, respectively.

Affiliate and Related Party Transactions

As the transactions discussed below were conducted between subsidiaries of Altice N.V. under common control and
equity method investees, amounts charged for certain services may not have represented amounts that might have been
received or incurred if the transactions were based upon arm's length negotiations.

Altice Technical Services US Corp. ("ATS")

ATS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Altice Technical Service B.V., a 70% owned subsidiary of Altice N.V. ATS was
formed to provide network construction and maintenance services and commercial and residential installations,
disconnections, and maintenance.
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In the second quarter of 2017, the Company entered into an Independent Contractor Agreement with ATS that governs
the terms of the services described above. The Company believes the services it receives from ATS will be of higher
quality and at a lower cost than the Company could achieve without ATS, including for the construction of our new
fiber-to-the-home ("FTTH") network. The Company also entered into a transition services agreement (“TSA”) for the
use of the Company’s resources to provide various overhead functions to ATS, including accounting, legal and human
resources and for the use of certain facilities, vehicles and technician tools during a transitional period that generally
ends on December 31, 2017, although the term can be extended on a service-by-service basis. The TSA requires ATS
to reimburse the Company for its cost to provide such services.

During the second quarter of 2017, a substantial portion of the Company's technical workforce either accepted
employment with ATS or became employees of ATS and ATS commenced operations and began to perform services for
the Company.

From the formation of ATS and up until an equity contribution was made by its parent in June 2017, ATS met the definition
of a variable interest entity in accordance with ASC 810-10-15-14. The Company evaluated whether its arrangement
under the terms of the Independent Contractor Agreement is a variable interest, whether the Company is the primary
beneficiary and whether the Company should consolidate ATS. The Company concluded that it is not the primary
beneficiary of ATS because ATS is controlled by its parent, which in turn is controlled by Altice N.V. who has the power
to direct the most significant activities of ATS.

As of September 30, 2017, the Company had a prepayment balance of $11,270 primarily to ATS which is reflected in
prepaid expenses and other current assets and $2,570 which is reflected in other long-term assets on the Company's
balance sheet.

The Company reduced goodwill to reflect the preliminary estimate of the historical value of the goodwill associated
with the transfer to ATS described above of $23,101, that has been recorded as a reduction to stockholder's equity.

The following table summarizes the revenue and charges related to services provided to or received from subsidiaries
of Altice N.V and Newsday:

Successor
Nine Months
Three Months Ended September 30, septlinmdt?gr 30, Jlég; t%rlﬁt%eglgot,o
2017 2016 2017 2016
REVEINUE. ...t eeeeaeenes $ 1,415 § 720 $ 1,809 $ 720
Operating expenses:
Programming and other direct costs.................. $ (1,227) $ — 3 (3,057) $ —
Other operating expenses, Net............ccecceuenene. (26,358) (6,198) (65,177) (6,198)
Operating eXpenses, Net............cc.cvvevevervennens (27,585) (6,198) (68,234) (6,198)
Net Charges........cverereeeirerieeeneeeese e $ (26,170) $ (5,478) $ (66,425) $ (5,478)
Capital expenditures.............ccoeeveervreeeeereneenennns $ 71,232 $ — 3 94,130 $ —
Revenue

The Company recognized revenue in connection with the sale of pay television, broadband and telephony services to
ATS and the sale of advertising to Newsday and other subsidiaries of Altice USA.

Programming and other direct costs

Programming and other direct costs include costs incurred by the Company for the transport and termination of voice
and data services provided by a subsidiary of Altice N.V.
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses includes charges of $20,030 and $48,997 from ATS for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2017, respectively, pursuant to the Independent Contractor Agreement discussed above.

A subsidiary of Altice N.V. provides certain executive services, including CEO, CFO and COO services, to the Company.
Compensation under the terms of the agreement is an annual fee of $20,000 to be paid by the Company. Fees associated
with this agreement recorded by the Company amounted to approximately $5,000 and $15,000 for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2017 (Successor), respectively. As of June 20, 2017, the CEO, CFO and COO became
employees of the Company and the agreement was assigned to Altice N.V. by a subsidiary of Altice N.V.

Other operating expenses also include charges for services provided by other subsidiaries of Altice N.V. aggregating
$1,404 and $2,097, respectively, net of a credit of $76 and $917 for transition services provided to Newsday for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures include $68,636 and $85,320 (including advance payments related to the FTTH project of $41,036)
for installation and construction activities performed by ATS for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017
and $2,596 and $8,810, respectively, for equipment purchases and software development services provided by
subsidiaries of Altice NV.

Aggregate amounts that were due from and due to related parties are summarized below:

Cablevision
September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016

Due from:
ATHCE USA (D).t b et $ 7,374 $ —
CEUEL () ..evoeeeeeeeee e 2,697 2,796
NEWSAAY (2)...ecvvveeeceeieveeceeieteeeee ettt ses st s e snas 4,177 6,114
Altice Management AMETICaS (8)............cceverveverueverreresseessosessosassssesnsesesseseenas 607 1,724
FZANEWS () oo 3,373 —
Other Altice N.V. SUDSIAIATIES (@).........c.cveveveveeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 38 —
$ 18,266 $ 10,634
Due to:
ATHCE USA (D).t $ 38,868 $ 28,704
NEWSAAY (2)....cvvveeeceeeeieeeeeeeeeee et es s sse e st s s s e sesseseesnas 103 275
Altice Management International (d) .............ccoeveveiiueveieiieereiiceeeeeee e — 41,575
ATS (B)(€)rvvurvrereeioieieiesesete ettt 22,526 —
Other Altice N.V. SUDSIAIATIES ()........oevevreeeereeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeseeeeeeee e seeens 5,229 2,533
$ 66,726 $ 73,087
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CSC Holdings
September 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Due from:
ATEEE USA (D) oo $ 7374 $ —
Cequel ()., 2,697 2,796
Newsday (a) 4,177 6,114
Altice Management AMETICas (2) ...........cooviveveeeeeeeueeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseseeseesenesnns 607 1,724
T2ANEWS (@)voevieieeiieiee ettt 3,373 —
Other Altice N.V. SUbSIIAIIEs (2)..........ocvovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 38 —
$ 18,266 $ 10,634
Due to:
Altice USA (a) $ 20§ —
NEWSAAY () ....cvoveceeeceeeeeeeeeeeeee et s e aene e sena st eseessansanen 103 275
Altice Management International (d)...............ococooveieiieieieieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen — 41,575
ATS (Q)()reviavierrerierieieiesiesieete sttt ett et et e st e e b e aesbesbeeteessesaessesaessessessessesseeseaneas 22,526 —
Other Altice N.V. SUbSIAIaries (a)............cocovvvevevreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseseeeeseneenns 5,231 2,533
CABIEVISION () ...vivivereeieceeeeteeeeeee et s et es et es e se s senenesaes 6,486 304,964
$ 34366 $ 349,347

(a) Represents amounts paid by the Company on behalf of the respective related party and for Newsday and ATS, the
net amounts due from the related party also includes charges for certain transition services provided.

(b) Reflects primarily amounts due pursuant to the tax sharing agreement effective June 21, 2016 between Cablevision

and Altice USA.

(c) Reflects primarily amounts due pursuant to the historical tax allocation policy and the tax sharing agreement between

CSC Holdings and Cablevision.

(d) Amounts payable as of December 31, 2016 primarily represent amounts due for equipment purchases and software

development services discussed above.

(e) Represents amounts due to ATS for construction, maintenance, and installation services, net of charges to ATS

pursuant to the TSA. See discussion above.

Predecessor

Prior to the Cablevision Acquisition, Cablevision was controlled by Charles F. Dolan, certain members of his immediate
family and certain family related entities (collectively the “Dolan Family””). Members of the Dolan Family are also the
controlling stockholders of AMC Networks, The Madison Square Garden Company and MSG Networks Inc. ("MSG

Networks").

The following table summarizes the revenue and charges related to services provided to or received from AMC Networks,
Madison Square Garden Company and MSG Networks for the period ended January 1, 2016 to June 20, 2016

(Predecessor):
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Predecessor

January 1, 2016 to
June 20, 2016

REVEIUE .....c.veieiceecee et ettt et ettt e e et e et e et e eaeese e st e st e st et e et e ebeeseessensensensensesseeteeseeseeteeseereensensensesenseeres $ 2,088

Operating expenses:

Programming and other direct costs, Net Of CIEAILS ...........ceeeeviiviiriiciececte ettt $ 84,636

Other operating expenses, NEt OF CIEAILS. ...........ccicveiiirieieieietii ettt er et b b e seenens 2,182

OPErating EXPENSES, NEL.....c.evviruiiriirietieteesietestesseeteeteeteessessessessessessesseeseeseeseessassasessessesseessassessessessassessanes 86,818

INEE CRATZES .....ovevieeeeeteeeteetee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et ese et eas s et ess et easese et easese st ese s essesenseseesenseseseseesensesennas $ 84,730
Revenue

The Company recognized revenue in connection with television advertisements and print advertising, as well as certain
telecommunication services charged by its subsidiaries to AMC Networks, Madison Square Garden and MSG Networks.
The Company and its subsidiaries, together with AMC Networks, Madison Square Garden and MSG Networks may
have entered into agreements with third parties in which the amounts paid/received by AMC Networks, Madison Square
Garden and MSG Networks, their subsidiaries, or the Company may have differed from the amounts that would have
been paid/received if such arrangements were negotiated separately. Where subsidiaries of the Company had incurred
a cost incremental to fair value and AMC Networks, Madison Square Garden and MSG Networks had received a benefit
incremental to fair value from these negotiations, the Company and its subsidiaries charged AMC Networks, Madison
Square Garden and MSG Networks for the incremental amount.

Programming and other direct costs

Programming and other direct costs included costs incurred by the Company for the carriage of the MSG Networks, as
well as for AMC, WE tv, IFC, Sundance Channel on the Company's cable systems. The Company also purchased certain
programming signal transmission and production services from AMC Networks.

Other operating expenses

The Company, AMC Networks, Madison Square Garden and MSG Networks had routinely entered into transactions
with each other in the ordinary course of business. Such transactions included, but were not limited to, sponsorship
agreements and cross-promotion arrangements. Additionally, amounts reflected in the table were net of allocations to
AMC Networks, Madison Square Garden and MSG Networks for services performed by the Company on their behalf.
Amounts also included charges to the Company for services performed or paid by the affiliate on the Company's behalf.

Subsequent to the Cablevision Acquisition, the Company continues to receive or provide services to these entities, but
these entities are no longer related parties.

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Matters

Cable Operations Litigation

In re Cablevision Consumer Litigation:

Following expiration of the affiliation agreements for carriage of certain Fox broadcast stations and cable networks on
October 16,2010, News Corporation terminated delivery of the programming feeds to Cablevision, and as a result, those
stations and networks were unavailable on Cablevision's cable television systems. On October 30, 2010, Cablevision
and Fox reached an agreement on new affiliation agreements for these stations and networks, and carriage was restored.
Several purported class action lawsuits alleging breach of contract, unjust enrichment, and consumer fraud and seeking
unspecified compensatory damages, punitive damages and attorneys' fees were subsequently filed on behalf of
Cablevision's customers seeking recovery for the lack of Fox programming. Those lawsuits were consolidated in an
action before the U. S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York, and a consolidated complaint was filed in
that court on February 22,2011. On March 28, 2012, in ruling on Cablevision's motion to dismiss, the Court dismissed
all of plaintiffs’ claims, except for breach of contract. On March 30, 2014, the Court granted plaintiffs’ motion for class
certification. The parties have entered into a settlement agreement, which is subject to Court approval. As of December 31,
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2016, the Company had an estimated liability associated with a potential settlement totaling $5,200. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2017, the Company recorded an additional liability of $800. The amount ultimately paid
in connection with the proposed settlement could exceed the amount recorded.

In October 2015, the New York Attorney General began an investigation into whether the major Internet Service Providers
in New York State deliver advertised Internet speeds. The Company is cooperating with this investigation and is currently
in discussions with the New York Attorney General about resolving the investigation as to the Company, which resolution
may involve operational and or financial components. While the Company is unable to predict the outcome of the
investigation or these discussions, at this time it does not expect that the outcome will have a material adverse effect on
its operations, financial conditions or cash flows.

The Company receives notices from third parties and, in some cases, is named as a defendant in certain lawsuits claiming
infringement of various patents relating to various aspects of the Company's businesses. In certain of these cases other
industry participants are also defendants. In certain of these cases the Company expects that any potential liability would
be the responsibility of the Company's equipment vendors pursuant to applicable contractual indemnification provisions.
The Company believes that the claims are without merit and intends to defend the actions vigorously, but is unable to
predict the outcome of these matters or reasonably estimate a range of possible loss.

In addition to the matters discussed above, the Company is party to various lawsuits, some involving claims for substantial
damages. Although the outcome of these other matters cannot be predicted and the impact of the final resolution of
these other matters on the Company's results of operations in a particular subsequent reporting period is not known,
management does not believe that the resolution of these other lawsuits will have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Company or the ability of the Company to meet its financial obligations as they become due.

NOTE 15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table summarizes information relating to the Company's acquired intangible assets as of September 30,
2017:

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Gross
Carrying Accumulated ~ Net Carrying Estimated
Amount Amortization Amount Useful Lives
Customer relationships...........cecveeeieviecieeeneeeeeeeeeeeene $ 4,895,000 $ (805,746) $§ 4,089,254  8to 18 years
Trade NAMES (8) ...eeveeveeeeienierieeieeiieieeieeeteie et 1,010,300 (378,909) 631,391 4 years
Other amortizable intangibles .............c..cooevivreieriierrnnnenn. 33,697 (7,842) 25,855  1to 15 years

$ 5938997 § (1,192,497) § 4,746,500

(a) On May 23, 2017, Altice N.V. announced the adoption of a global brand which will replace the Company's
brands in the future, reducing the remaining useful lives of these trade name intangibles. The Company has
estimated the remaining useful lives to be 3 years from the date of the adoption, which reflects one year as an
in-use asset and two years as a defensive asset. Amortization expense is calculated on an accelerated basis
based on the Company's estimate of the intangible asset during the in-use period. The remaining estimated
value of the defensive asset once it is no longer in use will be amortized over the defensive period. Estimated
amortization expense related to the Optimum and Lightpath trade names are approximately $545,805 for 2017
(of which $334,312 has been expensed through September 30, 2017), $355,006 for 2018, $46,627 for 2019
and $18,140 through May 2020.

Amortization expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 aggregated $366,986, and $810,132,
respectively. Amortization expense for the period June 21, 2016 through September 30, 2016 (Successor), January 1,
2016 through June 20, 2016 (Predecessor) amounted to $201,146 and $10,316, respectively.
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The following table summarizes information relating to the Company's acquired indefinite-lived intangible assets as of
September 30, 2017:

Cable telEVISION TTANCHISES ........eoeiieieeeee ettt e et e et e et e et e ea e e et e aeeeaeeeesteeee st e st esaeeeueeeaeeeseeeneseneens $ 8,113,575
GOOAWILL......etteeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e e e st et e st et st ea e et et ete et en s et e s ese et essesesseseesensesenseseerensereseneas 5,839,757
TOTAL ..ttt et et e e et e e a e e a e et e e et et et e eae et e e e eateeateeat et e eete e teeteeeteste e tesateereeeaeenaeeaeas $ 13,953,332

The carrying amount of goodwill is presented below:

Gross goodwill as 0f JANUATY 1, 2017 ......c.ccvoviiiiiiiieieeeeeeeteetee ettt ettt s b st ss e besseseneneas $ 5,838,959
Goodwill recorded in connection with acquisition in first quarter 2017...........cccceeveerieieeeeeierieceeeeeeeeee e 20,686
Adjustments to purchase accounting relating to the Cablevision ACqUISItION............c..cveeeeevvevveererreereere e ereeneeneenns 3,213
Transfer of goodwill related to ATS (See Note 13 for further details).............ccevveivieieiieicicececeeeeeeees (23,101)
Net goodwill as of September 30, 2017 ........cceeuieieieieieieiect ettt ettt e reeteeteetee s esse s e ssessessesseessessassensas $ 5,839,757
NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 31, 2017, CSC Holdings made a voluntary repayment under its revolving credit facility of $500,000 with
cash on hand and proceeds of a contribution from Altice USA of $386,196.

The Company has updated its review of subsequent events as of November 13, 2017 (the date available for issuance)
noting no events that require disclosure.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

All dollar amounts, except per customer and per share data, included in the following discussion are presented in
thousands.

Overview
Our Business

We deliver broadband, pay television, telephony services, Wi-Fi hotspot access, proprietary content and advertising
services to approximately 3.1 million residential and business customers. Our footprint covers approximately 5.1 million
homes passed as of September 30, 2017 in and around the New York metropolitan area.

Recent Transactions

On June 21,2016, a subsidiary of Altice N.V. merged with and into Cablevision, with Cablevision as the surviving entity
and wholly-owned subsidiary of Altice USA (the "Cablevision Acquisition"). In connection with the Cablevision
Acquisition, each outstanding share of Cablevision NY Group Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and
Cablevision NY Group Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share (together, the “CNYG Shares”), received
$34.90 in cash without interest, less applicable tax withholdings. The total consideration for the CNYG Shares and
equity -based awards amounted to approximately $9,958,323.

In July 2016, we completed the sale of a 75% interest in Newsday LLC and retained the remaining 25% ownership
interest. Effective July 7, 2016, the operating results of Newsday are no longer consolidated with our results and our
25% interest in the operating results of Newsday is recorded on the equity basis.

Key Factors Impacting Operating Results and Financial Condition

Our future performance is dependent, to a large extent, on the impact of direct competition, general economic conditions
(including capital and credit market conditions), our ability to manage our businesses effectively, and our relative strength
and leverage in the marketplace, both with suppliers and customers. See “Risk Factors” in our annual report for the year
ended December 31, 2016 for more information.

We derive revenue principally through monthly charges to residential subscribers of our broadband, pay television and
telephony services. We also derive revenue from equipment rental, DVR, VOD, pay-per-view, installation and home
shopping commissions. Our residential pay television, broadband and telephony services accounted for approximately
47%, 24% and 11%, respectively, of our consolidated revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2017. We also
derive revenue from the sale of a wide and growing variety of products and services to both large enterprise and small
and medium-sized ("SMB") customers, including broadband, telephony, networking and pay television services. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2017, approximately 14% of our consolidated revenue was derived from these
business services. In addition, we derive revenues from the sale of advertising time available on the programming carried
on our cable television systems, which accounted for approximately 4% of our consolidated revenue for the nine months
ended September 30, 2017. Our other revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 accounted for less than
1% of our consolidated revenue.

Revenue increases are derived from rate increases, increases in the number of subscribers to our services, including
additional services sold to our existing subscribers, programming package upgrades by our pay television customers,
speed tier upgrades by our broadband customers, and acquisitions of cable systems that result in the addition of new
subscribers.

Our ability to increase the number of subscribers to our services is significantly related to our penetration rates.

We operate in a highly competitive consumer-driven industry and we compete against a variety of broadband, pay
television and telephony providers and delivery systems, including broadband communications companies, wireless
data and telephony providers, satellite -delivered video signals, Internet - delivered video content, and broadcast television
signals available to residential and business customers in our service areas. Our competitors include AT&T and its
DirecTV subsidiary, DISH Network, Frontier and Verizon. Consumers’ selection of an alternate source of service, whether
due to economic constraints, technological advances or preference, negatively impacts the demand for our services. For
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more information on our competitive landscape, see “Risk Factors” in our annual report for the year ended December
31, 2016 for more information.

Our programming costs, which are the most significant component of our operating expenses, have increased and are
expected to continue to increase primarily as a result of contractual rate increases and new channel launches. See “Results
of Operations” below for more information regarding our key factors impacting our revenues and operating expenses.

Historically, we have made substantial investments in our network and the development of new and innovative products
and other service offerings for our customers as a way of differentiating ourselves from our competitors and may continue
to do so in the future. We have commenced a five-year plan to build a fiber-to-the-home ("FTTH") network, which will
enable us to deliver more than 10 Gbps broadband speeds across our entire footprint. We may incur greater than anticipated
capital expenditures in connection with this initiative, fail to realize anticipated benefits, experience delays and business
disruptions or encounter other challenges to executing it as planned. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources-Capital
Expenditures” for additional information regarding our capital expenditures.

Basis of Presentation

The results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, the three months ended September 30, 2016 and
the period ended June 21,2016 to September 30, 2016 reflect operating results subsequent to the Cablevision Acquisition
and are labeled “Successor.” The results for the period ended January 1, 2016 to June 20, 2016 reflects the operating
results prior to the Cablevision Acquisition and is labeled “Predecessor.” The accompanying financial data includes a
black line division to indicate the application of the different bases of accounting utilized by the Predecessor and Successor
reporting entities as a result of push down accounting. As a result, the financial statements for the Predecessor period
and for the Successor period are not comparable.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We define Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as net income (loss) excluding income taxes,
income (loss) from discontinued operations, other non-operating income or expenses, loss on extinguishment of debt
and write -off of deferred financing costs, gain (loss) on derivative contracts, gain (loss) on investments, interest expense
(including cash interest expense), interest income, depreciation and amortization (including impairments), share-based
compensation expense or benefit, restructuring expense or credits and transaction expenses. We believe Adjusted
EBITDA is an appropriate measure for evaluating the operating performance of the Company. Adjusted EBITDA and
similar measures with similar titles are common performance measures used by investors, analysts and peers to compare
performance in our industry. Internally, we use revenue and Adjusted EBITDA measures as important indicators of our
business performance, and evaluate management’s effectiveness with specific reference to these indicators. We believe
Adjusted EBITDA provides management and investors a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our core
business and operating results by excluding items that are not comparable across reporting periods or that do not otherwise
relate to the Company’s ongoing operating results. Adjusted EBITDA should be viewed as a supplement to and not a
substitute for operating income (loss), net income (loss), and other measures of performance presented in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Since Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure of performance
calculated in accordance with GAAP, this measure may not be comparable to similar measures with similar titles used
by other companies.
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Results of Operations

Cablevision
Successor
Three Months ~ Three Months
Ended Ended 2017 t0 2016 % Change
September 30,  September 30, Favorable 2017 to
2017 2016 (unfavorable) 2016
Revenue:
Residential:
Pay TV i $ 782,214 § 772,886 $ 9,328 1 %
BIOAADANG ..o eeeeeeeeeeee e eee s s ses s 404,153 366,166 37,987 10 %
Telephony ......cccoiiiiiiiiiiii 172,904 178,000 (5,096) 3)%
Business services and wholesale .. 230,274 220,352 9,922 5%
AQVETHSING ovovceeeiiieieieicecc s 67,563 67,815 (252) — %
OBhET oo 7,211 9,480 (2,269) (24)%
Total FEVENMUE .......oooiiiiiiiiiiiciiieie et 1,664,319 1,614,699 49,620 3%
Operating expenses:
Programming and other direct COStS ..........cooevervriiiiiiiiiicceie 570,995 554,370 (16,625) 3%
Other oOperating EXpenSes ..........ccoeueeeririirererereeiisesieeseseeesessssenenenes 390,673 493,709 103,036 21)%
Restructuring and other eXpense .........cccocoeeiiniiniiiiiiiiciecees 35,364 42,264 6,900 (16)%
Depreciation and amortization .............cceceeveeiiiinieiniiinnenicieees 656,102 481,497 (174,605) 36 %
Operating income (10SS) ..........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie, 11,185 42,859 (31,674) (74)%
Other income (expense):
Interest eXpense, NEt ......c.oceeieieiiiiiiiiicicieeee (277,228) (292,544)
Gain (10ss) 0N INVEStMENtS, NEt ....c.coveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiccic e (18,900) 24,833
Gain on derivative CONracts, NEL ......coeoververrereeeirereneneneseereeeeenees 55,602 773
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred financing
COSES vttt (38,857) —
Other inCOmMe (EXPEeNSe), NEL .....coveuvrueuirieriiiriiiieiieeeieieeeereeee e (65) 2,530
Loss before income taxes .............ccccooooveiiiiiniiiiii (268,263) (221,549)
Income tax benefit 112,353 89,157
NEEIOSS ....oiiiiiiii s (155,910) (132,392)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests .............ccccceeevveenene. (135) (256)
Net loss attributable to Cablevision Systems Corporation
StOCKNOLAEr ... $ (156,045) § (132,648)
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Revenue:

Residential:

Telephony ......ccccovvviviiiiiniiiiiie,

Business services and wholesale ...............

Operating expenses:
Programming and other direct costs..........
Other operating eXpenses ..........c.coceeveennne

Restructuring and other expense ..

Depreciation and amortization ..................
Operating income ..............ccccccevivinnnnn.
Other income (expense):

Interest eXpense, NEt....c.covevervrvererueerueennne

Gain on investments, N€t.........coccecerervennene

Loss on derivative contracts, net

Loss on extinguishment of debt and
write-off of deferred financing costs.....

Other INCOME, NEt....coveevereereeienieieeienne
Income (loss) before income taxes ............
Income tax benefit (expense) ..........ccccoeuuee.
Net income (10SS) ..........c.cceeveveieieieennnne.

Net loss (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests ..........c.ccccceevuneee

Net income (loss) attributable to
Cablevision Systems Corporation
stockholder(s) .........cccccooveiiininiiininnn,
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Cablevision
Successor Predecessor  Combined
Nine Nine
Months June 21, Months
Ended 2016 to January 1, Ended 2017t02016 % Change
September September 2016 to June  September Favorable 2017 to
30,2017 30, 2016 20,2016 30, 2016 (unfavorable) 2016
$ 2,356,230 $§ 859,932 |$1,468,006 $2,327,938 $ 28,292 1 %
1,177,731 406,057 673,010 1,079,067 98,664 9%
524,696 198,282 342,142 540,424 (15,728) 3)%
690,168 244,685 411,102 655,787 34,381 5%
203,351 75,458 119,727 195,185 8,166 4 %
21,366 14,145 123,617 137,762 (116,396) 84)%
4,973,542 1,798,559 | 3,137,604 4,936,163 37,379 1%
1,710,245 616,860 | 1,088,555 1,705,415 (4,830) — %
1,271,971 543,884 | 1,136,970 1,680,854 408,883 24)%
105,182 131,500 22,223 153,723 48,541 (32)%
1,641,477 526,057 414,550 940,607 (700,870) 75 %
244,667 (19,742) 475,306 455,564 (210,897) (46)%
(832,894) (320,887) | (285,508) (606,395)
169,888 83,467 129,990 213,457
(81,905) (26,572) (36,283) (62,855)
(57,833) — — —
832 2,536 4,855 7,391
(557,245) (281,198) 288,360 7,162
205,996 113,258 (124,848) (11,590)
(351,249) (167,940) 163,512 (4,428)
(737) 108 236 344
$ (351,986) § (167,832) |$ 163,748 $ (4,084)
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The following is a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA:

Successor
Three Months Three Months 2017 to 2016
Ended September ~ Ended September Favorable
30,2017 30,2016 (unfavorable)
NEELOSS oo $ (155,910) $ (132,392) $ (23,518)
Income tax benefit .........ccoooiveiniiniiieee e (112,353) (89,157) (23,196)
Other inCOME (EXPENSE), NEL .....everuirtiiirriieieieieieeeteeie ettt eens 65 (2,530) 2,595
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of deferred financing costs. 38,857 — 38,857
Gain on derivative contracts, net .... (55,602) (773) (54,829)
Loss (gain) on investments, NEt ..........ccccovueiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiieeeceeeieenns 18,900 (24,833) 43,733
Interest eXpense, NEt ........ooviviiiiiiiiiiiicicece 277,228 292,544 (15,316)
Depreciation and amortization .............ccceeeeveiiiiiiiniiniiiiieieecee 656,102 481,497 174,605
Restructuring and other expense .... 35,364 42,264 (6,900)
Share-based COMPENSALION .......ccoeuiruiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiciciciee e 11,555 1,091 10,464
Adjusted EBITDA ..o $ 714206 $ 567,711  $ 146,495
The following is a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA:
Successor Predecessor ~ Combined
Nine
Nine months January 1, Months
ended June 21, 2016 2016 to Ended 2017 to 2016
September 30, to September June 20, September Favorable
2017 30,2016 2016 30,2016 (unfavorable)
Net inCOmME (10SS) ..vvvvvvvvvvvvvnississssssiis $ (351,249) $§  (167,940) |$ 163,512 $  (4,428) $  (346,821)
Income tax (benefit) eXpense ...........coceververeeneeneennnne (205,996) (113,258) 124,848 11,590 (217,586)
Other income, Net ........ccccovviviiiniiiiiiniiiiiccccce (832) (2,536) (4,855) (7,391) 6,559
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of
deferred financing COStS .......covvvveivviiiiiiiiiiiiinen, 57,833 — — — 57,833
Loss on derivative contracts, N€t........cccceerveerveernnenns 81,905 26,572 36,283 62,855 19,050
Gain on investments, Net.........ccceceeivueruerienienieeennne. (169,888) (83,467) (129,990) (213,457) 43,569
Interest expense, Net .........cccceevveveiiiniiiiiiiciiinicene 832,894 320,887 285,508 606,395 226,499
Depreciation and amortization ............ccccceeeeeveuenne. 1,641,477 526,057 414,550 940,607 700,870
Restructuring and other expense............ccocoeerccnne 105,182 131,500 22,223 153,723 (48,541)
Share-based compensation............cccceceveiiviiciiinnnne 28,597 1,091 25,231 26,322 2,275
Adjusted EBITDA ......ccccovmmmiieiiinnnieienciecenens $ 2,019,923 $ 638,906 |$ 937,310 $1,576,216 $ 443,707
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The following table sets forth certain customer metrics:

Cablevision
September 30, September 30,
2017 June 30, 2017 2016
(in thousands, except per customer amounts)
Homes PaSSed(Q) ...........cceevvieiieiieieeiecie ettt ens 5,134 5,140 5,105
Total customer relationships(b)(€)...........ccooevviiiiieiiiiiiiiicieeeeeees 3,149 3,151 3,135
RESIAENTIAL ... 2,887 2,889 2,873
262 262 261
PAY TV oottt 2,382 2,401 2,443
Broadband............oorvririnnr e 2,653 2,646 2,603
TEICPRONY ...ttt ettt 1,959 1,954 1,969
Residential triple product customer penetration(d): ................c........... 64.3% 64.3% 65.3%
Penetration of homes passed(e):...............cccocceveviniiiiicecicieeeee, 61.3% 61.3% 61.4%
ARPU(D) ...ttt $ 156.88  $ 156.00 S 152.55
(a) Represents the estimated number of single residence homes, apartments and condominium units passed by the

cable distribution network in areas serviceable without further extending the transmission lines. In addition, it
includes commercial establishments that have connected to our cable distribution network.

(b) Represents number of households/businesses that receive at least one of the Company’s services.

(©) Customers represent each customer account (set up and segregated by customer name and address), weighted
equally and counted as one customer, regardless of size, revenue generated, or number of boxes, units, or outlets.
In calculating the number of customers, we count all customers other than inactive/disconnected customers.
Free accounts are included in the customer counts along with all active accounts, but they are limited to a
prescribed group. Most of these accounts are also not entirely free, as they typically generate revenue through
pay-per-view or other pay services and certain equipment fees. Free status is not granted to regular customers
as a promotion. In counting bulk residential customers, such as an apartment building, we count each subscribing
family unit within the building as one customer, but do not count the master account for the entire building as
a customer. We count a bulk commercial customer, such as a hotel, as one customer, and do not count individual
room units at that hotel.

(d) Represents the number of customers that subscribe to three of our services divided by total residential customer
relationships.

(e) Represents the number of total customer relationships divided by homes passed.

® Calculated by dividing the average monthly revenue for the respective quarter (fourth quarter for annual periods)

derived from the sale of broadband, pay television and telephony services to residential customers for the
respective quarter by the average number of total residential customers for the same period.
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The following table reflects our net customer increases (decreases) for the three and combined nine months ended
September 30, 2017 and 2016:

Three Months Ended September 30,  Nine months ended September 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
(in thousands)

Total customer relationships(b)............................ (2.0) (8.5) 7.8 19.1
Residential .........cccooveveinireeininieeeeceee (2.2) (9.0) 7.9 15.9
SMB ... 0.1 0.4 0.1) 32

Residential customers(c):

Pay TV oo (18.7) (27.4) (45.6) (43.7)
Broadband...........cccooeeiinneine e 7.1 0.2) 342 41.5
Telephony........ccooereereieeece e 4.5 (25.0) 3.2) (38.2)

Pay Television Revenue

Pay television revenue increased $9,328 (1%) and $28,292 (1%) for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016, due primarily to
rate increases for certain video services implemented near the end of the fourth quarter of 2016 and an increase in late
fees. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease in revenue as compared to the prior year due to a decline in pay
television customers.

We believe our pay television customer declines noted in the table above are largely attributable to competition,
particularly from Verizon, as well as competition from companies that deliver video content over the Internet directly
to customers. These factors are expected to continue to impact our ability to maintain or increase our existing customers
and revenue in the future.

Broadband Revenue

Broadband revenue increased $37,987 (10%) and $98,664 (9%) for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016, due to higher average
recurring broadband revenue per broadband customer, an increase in broadband customers, and an increase in late fees.

Telephony Revenue

Telephony revenue decreased $5,096 (3%) and $15,728 (3%) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, as compared to the combined three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, due primarily to a decline
in international calling and a decline in telephony customers.

Business Services Revenue

Business services revenue increased $9,922 (5%) and $34,381 (5%) for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016, primarily due to
higher average recurring telephony and broadband revenue per SMB customer and an increase in Ethernet revenue
resulting from a larger number of services installed, partially offset by reduced traditional voice and data services for
commercial customers.

Advertising Revenue

Advertising revenue increased $252 and $8,166 (4%) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016, primarily due to increases
in digital advertising revenue.

Other Revenue

Other revenue, decreased $2,269 (24%) and $116,396 (84%) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, as compared to the combined three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, primarily due to the
Company no longer consolidating the operating results of Newsday as a result of the sale of a 75% interest in Newsday,
effective July 7,2016. The Company's 25% interest in the operating results of Newsday is recorded on the equity method.
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Programming and Other Direct Costs

Programming and other direct costs include cable programming costs, which are costs paid to programmers (net of
amortization of any incentives received from programmers for carriage) for cable content (including costs of video-on-
demand and pay-per-view) and are generally paid on a per-subscriber basis. These costs typically rise due to increases
in contractual rates and new channel launches and are also impacted by changes in the number of customers receiving
certain programming services. These costs also include interconnection, call completion, circuit and transport fees paid
to other telecommunication companies for the transport and termination of voice and data services, which typically vary
based on rate changes and the level of usage by our customers. These costs also include franchise fees which are payable
to the state governments and local municipalities where we operate and are primarily based on a percentage of certain
categories of revenue derived from the provision of cable television service over our cable systems, which vary by state
and municipality. These costs change in relation to changes in such categories of revenues or rate changes.

Programming and other direct costs increased $16,625 (3%) and $4,830 for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2017, respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016. The
net increases are attributable to the following:

Three Months ~ Nine Months
Ended September 30, 2017

Increase in programming costs due primarily to contractual rate increases and an increase in
pay-per-view costs primary from an event in August 2017, partially offset by lower pay

television customers and lower video-on-demand COStS...........oeeririreeiririeieirrieieeseeeeeene $ 16,517  $ 46,340
Increase in costs of digital media advertising spots for resale 5,251 10,761
Decrease in costs primarily related to the sale of Newsday in July 2016............ccccevveviiviineenenens (1,731) (33,889)
Decrease in call completion and transport costs primarily due to lower level of activity .............. (3,205) (15,297)
Decrease in cost of sales (which includes the bulk sale of handset inventory of $5,445 during

the first qUATtEr 0T 20160)......c.icuiiiieeieeieieieieceeceecee ettt et et ettt ea e reereereeveeneenean (375 (4,543)
OhET NET INCTEASES .....cuveueterteiiteiietert ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt s et ettt st bt sa et bt se sttt ebe et ste e ebenees 168 1,458

$ 16,625 $ 4,830

Programming costs, net aggregated $482,387 and $1,447,920 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, and $465,870 and $1,401,580 for the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016,
respectively. Our programming costs increased 3% for the three and nine months ended September 30,2017, respectively,
as compared to the same periods in the prior year, primarily due to an increase in contractual programming rates, partially
offset by a decrease in pay television customers. Our programming costs in 2017 will continue to be impacted by changes
in programming rates, which we expect to increase by high single digits, and by changes in the number of pay television
customers.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses include staff costs and employee benefits including salaries of company employees and related
taxes, benefits and other employee related expenses. Other operating expenses also include network management and
field service costs, which represent costs associated with the maintenance of our broadband network, including costs of
certain customer connections and other costs associated with providing and maintaining services to our customers.

Customer installation and repair and maintenance costs may fluctuate as a result of changes in the level of activities and
the utilization of contractors as compared to employees. Also, customer installation costs fluctuate as the portion of our
expenses that we are able to capitalize changes. Network repair and maintenance and utility costs also fluctuate as
capitalizable network upgrade and enhancement activity changes.

In connection with the execution of an agreement with ATS in the second quarter of 2017 (see Note 13 of our consolidated
financial statements), the Company’s operating results reflect a reduction in employee related expenses due to certain
employees becoming employed by ATS and an increase in contractor costs for services provided by ATS. See further
details in the table below.

Other operating expenses also include costs related to the operation and maintenance of our call center facilities that
handle customer inquiries and billing and collection activities and sales and marketing costs, which include advertising
production and placement costs associated with acquiring and retaining customers. These costs vary period to period
and certain of these costs may increase with intense competition. Additionally, other operating expenses include various
other administrative costs, including legal fees, and product development costs.
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Other operating expenses decreased $103,036 (21%) and $408,883 (24%) for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2017 as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30,2016. The net decreases
are attributable to the following:

Three Months Nine Months
Ended September 30, 2017

Decrease primarily in employee related costs related to the elimination of certain positions
(including the impact of the decline in headcount resulting from the ATS agreement), and

lower net benefits, partially offset by merit increases v $ (126,269) $ (336,241)
Decrease in costs primarily related to the sale of Newsday in July 2016 .............ccocovevvevevennenn. (3,788) (95,262)
Decrease in repairs and maintenance costs relating to our Operations...........coceeceeeeeeeeeeeernennns (8,382) (28,649)
Decrease in product development costs and product consulting fees .............ccccecveirieeriecieiniennns (6,368) (25,365)
Decrease (increase) in capitalization of certain costs primarily due to a change to the asset-
based approach for estimating capitaliZation ............cceeverueriererereeieieieieiese et 2,486 (16,471)
Decrease in rent and insurance (including the impact of the decline in headcount resulting

from the ATS aGIEEMENt)........c.ocviuiiiiiiiicticiecteeteete ettt et ettt e e eaeeseeteereeveeseensensensan (9,693) (15,438)
Increase (decrease) in share-based compensation and long-term incentive plan awards expense 11,298 (790)
Increase in contractor costs due primarily to the execution of the ATS agreement...................... 43,298 85,443
Increase in sales and MArketing COSS..........ocvieieierieieriiieiiticteereete ettt e et ere v e v ereeseeeennens 1,481 21,559
Increase (decrease) due to fees from a subsidiary of Altice for certain executive services as

well as consulting, advisory and other services involving our business ............c.ccccecevveeruenenne. (556) 9,444
OthEr NET AECTEASES........ecveiveeveieieeeeieteeteete et ettt et et et et eseeseeseeteeseeseereensensesesseeseeseersersersessensensens (6,543) (7,113)

$ (103,036) $ (408,883)

Restructuring and Other Expense

Restructuring and other expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 amounted to $35,364 and
$105,182, respectively and $42,264 and $153,723 for the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016,
respectively. The restructuring expense for 2017, as well as for the period June 21, 2016 through September 30, 2016
are primarily related to severance and other employee related costs resulting from headcount reductions related to
initiatives which commenced subsequent to the Cablevision Acquisition that are intended to simplify the Company's
organizational structure. Restructuring and other expense for the three months and the combined nine months ended
September 30, 2016 includes acquisition related transaction costs of $239 and $20,163, respectively, and adjustments
related to prior restructuring plans of $2,282 for the combined nine months ended September 30, 2016.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased $174,605 (36%) and $700,870 (75%) for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2017, respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016,
respectively. The net increase in 2017 is primarily due to depreciation and amortization expense recorded during the
Successor period related to the step-up in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and amortizable intangible
assets recorded in connection with the Cablevision Acquisition and due to the acceleration of amortization on its trade
name intangible assets in connection with the announcement, on May 23, 2017, of the adoption of a global brand that
will replace the Optimum and Lightpath brands in the future, partially offset by certain assets being retired or becoming
fully depreciated.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA increased $146,495 (26%) and $443,707 (28%) for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively, as compared to the combined three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, respectively. The
increase was due primarily to a decrease in operating expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization, restructuring
and other expense and share-based compensation), as discussed above.
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Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net decreased $15,316 (5%) and increased $226,499 (37%) for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2017, respectively, as compared to the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016,
respectively. The net increase (decrease) is attributable to the following:

Three Months  Nine Months
Ended September 30, 2017

Increase (decrease) due to changes in average debt balances and interest rates on our
indebtedness and collateralized debt...............ooviiuiiiieeieeeeee et $ (20,281) $ 242,804

Lower (higher) Interest iNCOME...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic s (119) 1,309

Other net increases (decreases), primarily amortization of deferred financing costs and original
ISSUE AISCOUNLES ..ot 5,084 (17,614)

$ (15,316) $ 226,499

See "Liquidity and Capital Resources" discussion below for a detail of our borrower groups.
Gain (Loss) on Investments, net

Gain (loss) on investments, net for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 amounted to $(18,900) and
$169,888, respectively, compared to $24,833 and $83,467 for the three and combined nine months ended September
30, 2016, respectively and consists primarily of the increase (decrease) in the fair value of Comcast Corporation
("Comcast") common stock owned by the Company. The effects of these gains (losses) are partially offset by the losses
(gains) on the related derivative contracts, net described below.

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Contracts, net

Gain (loss) on derivative contracts, net for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 amounted to $55,602
and $(81,905), respectively, and $773 and $(62,855) for the three and combined nine months ended September 30, 2016,
respectively, and consists of unrealized and realized losses due to the change in fair value of the Company's derivative
contracts relating to the Comcast common stock owned by the Company. The effects of these gains (losses) are offset
by the losses (gains) on investment securities pledged as collateral, which are included in gain (loss) on investments,
net discussed above.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax benefit amounted to $112,353 and $205,996 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, reflecting an effective tax rate of 42% and 37%, respectively. Nondeductible share-based compensation
resulted in additional deferred tax expense of $4,622 and $11,439 for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively.

Cablevision recorded income tax benefit of $89,157 and $113,258 for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and
the period from June 21 through September 30, 2016, respectively, reflecting an effective tax rate of 40% in both periods.

Cablevision recorded income tax expense of $124,848 for the period from January 1 through June 20,2016. In connection
with the Merger, certain merger-related costs were determined to be nondeductible, resulting in additional deferred tax
expense of $9,392. Absent this item, the effective tax rate would have been 40%.

On January 1, 2017, Cablevision adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-09 using the prospective
transition method related to the presentation of excess tax benefit on the statement of cash flows. In connection with
the adoption, a deferred tax asset of $308,231 for previously unrealized excess tax benefits related to shared-based
payments was recognized with the offset to accumulated deficit.

AsofSeptember 30,2017, onastand-alone basis, Cablevision's federal net operating losses (“NOLs”) were approximately
$795,000. The Cablevision Acquisition resulted in an ownership change under the Internal Revenue Code Section 382
and certain state taxing authorities whereby Cablevision’s NOLs immediately prior to the Cablevision Acquisition will
be subject to certain limitations. As of September 30, 2017, Cablevision NOLs of approximately $378,000 remain
subject to such limitations. Cablevision does not expect such limitations to impact the ability to utilize the NOLs prior
to their expiration.

In general, the Company is required to use an estimated annual effective tax rate to measure the income tax expense or
benefitrecognized in an interim period. The estimated annual effective tax rate is revised on a quarterly basis and therefore
may be different from the rate used in a prior interim period. In addition, certain items included in income tax expense

52



CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

as well as the tax impact of certain items included in pretax income from continuing operations must be treated as discrete
items. The income tax expense or benefit associated with these discrete items is fully recognized in the interim period
in which the items occur.

CSC HOLDINGS, LLC

The condensed consolidated statements of operations of CSC Holdings are essentially identical to the condensed
consolidated statements of operations of Cablevision, except for the following:

Successor
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2017 2016
Net loss attributable to Cablevision Systems Corporation stockholder.................ccevevieinieerienierinens $  (156,045) $ (132,648)
Interest expense relating to Cablevision senior notes included in Cablevision's consolidated
StAtEMENS OF OPEIALIONS ......eevieiieiieieite ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et e tesbe st e be bt e st e st entenaenbebeenes 37,821 44,880
Income tax benefit included in Cablevision's consolidated statements of operations 2,121 (17,953)
Net income (loss) attributable to CSC Holdings, LLC's sole Member .............ccccceeeeieieieviesienennenns $ (116,103) $ (105,721)
Successor Predecessor Combined
) June 21, )
Nine months 2016 January 1, Nine Months
ended through 2016 Ended
September September | through June  September
30,2017 30,2016 20,2016 30,2016
Net income (loss) attributable to Cablevision Systems
Corporation StOCKNOIETs. ............c.vvrvrueeeieereeresie s, $ (351,986) § (167,832)|$ 163,748 § (4,084)
Interest expense relating to Cablevision senior notes included in
Cablevision's consolidated statements of operations................... 123,088 49,984 105,492 155,476
Interest income related to cash held at Cablevision — 1) 19) (20)
Interest income included in CSC Holdings' consolidated
statements of operations related to Cablevision's senior notes
held by Newsday Holdings, through the date of sale in July
2016 (this interest income is eliminated in the consolidated
statements of operations of Cablevision).........ccocevevererereeenee. - 1,335 22,692 24,027
Loss on extinguishment of debt relating to Cablevision senior
TIOEES ..ttt 6,300 - - —
Income tax benefit included in Cablevision's consolidated
statements Of OPETatioNS ..........ceceeerereeieiienienenenereseeeeeeeeaen (51,302) (20,528) (54,810) (75,338)
Net income (loss) attributable to CSC Holdings, LLC's sole
INEIMIDET ...ttt sttt $ (273,900) § (137,042)|$ 237,103 $ 100,061

Refer to Cablevision's Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations herein.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cablevision

Cablevision has no operations independent of its subsidiaries. Cablevision's outstanding debt securities consist of
$1,899,024 face value of senior notes and debentures, which are held by third party investors.

Funding for Our Debt Service Requirements

Funding for the debt service requirements of our debt securities has been provided by our subsidiaries' operations,
principally CSC Holdings, as permitted by the covenants governing CSC Holdings' credit agreements and indentures.
Funding for our subsidiaries has generally been provided by cash flow from operations, cash on hand and borrowings
under the Restricted Group (as later defined) revolving credit facility, proceeds from the issuance of securities and
borrowings under syndicated term loans in the capital markets. Our decision as to the use of cash generated from
operating activities, cash on hand, borrowings under the Restricted Group revolving credit facility or accessing the
capital markets has been based upon an ongoing review of the funding needs of the business, the optimal allocation of
cash resources, the timing of cash flow generation and the cost of borrowing under the revolving credit facility, debt
securities and syndicated term loans. We have accessed the debt markets for significant amounts of capital in the past
(including in connection with the Cablevision Acquisition) and expect to do so in the future.

We expect to utilize free cash flow and availability under the Restricted Group revolving credit facility, as well as future
refinancing transactions to further extend the maturities of, or reduce the principal on, our debt obligations. The timing
and terms of any refinancing transactions will be subject to, among other factors, market conditions. Additionally, we
may, from time to time, depending on market conditions and other factors, use cash on hand and the proceeds from other
borrowings to repay the outstanding debt securities through open market purchases, privately negotiated purchases,
tender offers, or redemption provisions.

We believe existing cash balances, operating cash flows and availability under the Restricted Group revolving credit
facility will provide adequate funds to support our current operating plan, make planned capital expenditures and fulfill
our debt service requirements for the next twelve months. However, our ability to fund our operations, make planned
capital expenditures, make scheduled payments on our indebtedness and repay our indebtedness depends on our future
operating performance and cash flows and our ability to access the capital markets, which, in turn, are subject to prevailing
economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors, some of which are beyond our control. Our collateralized
debt maturing in the next 12 months will be settled with proceeds from monetization contracts entered into pursuant to
the Synthetic Monetization Closeout discussed below. However, competition, market disruptions or a deterioration in
economic conditions could lead to lower demand for our products, as well as lower levels of advertising, and increased
incidence of customers' inability to pay for the services we provide. These events would adversely impact our results
of operations, cash flows and financial position. Although we currently believe that amounts available under the
Restricted Group revolving credit facility will be available when, and if needed, we can provide no assurance that access
to such funds will not be impacted by adverse conditions in the financial markets or other conditions. The obligations
of the financial institutions under the Restricted Group revolving credit facility are several and not joint and, as a result,
a funding default by one or more institutions does not need to be made up by the others.

In the longer term, we do not expect to be able to generate sufficient cash from operations to fund anticipated capital
expenditures, meet all existing future contractual payment obligations and repay our debt at maturity. As a result, we
will be dependent upon our continued access the capital and credit markets to issue additional debt or equity or refinance
existing debt obligations. We will need to raise significant amounts of funding over the next several years to fund capital
expenditures, repay existing obligations and meet other obligations, and the failure to do so successfully could adversely
affect our business. If we are unable to do so, we will need to take other actions including deferring capital expenditures,
selling assets, seeking strategic investments from third parties or reducing or eliminating discretionary uses of cash.
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Debt Outstanding

The following table summarizes the carrying value of our outstanding debt, net of deferred financing costs, discounts
and premiums (excluding accrued interest), as well as interest expense.

As of September 30, 2017

Total
Restricted Other CSC Total
Group Entities Holdings Cablevision  Cablevision
Debt Outstanding: ...............ccoooviiiiiii
Credit facility debt .....c.cccovevvvereucicinnnreeccenreeeneee $ 4,123,792 $ — $ 4,123,792 $ — $ 4,123,792
Senior guaranteed NOLES .........ccceeveiriviiininiinieieciee 2,290,748 — 2,290,748 — 2,290,748
Senior notes and debentures () ........cccceeevevienieiieiciennne. 6,412,789 — 6,412,789 1,817,536 8,230,325
Capital lease obligations ..........c.cceeveveeerenienienienieieieenne 14,389 — 14,389 — 14,389
Notes payable (includes $43,706 related to collateralized
AEDL) oo 32,736 43,706 76,442 — 76,442
Subtotal 12,874,454 43,706 12,918,160 1,817,536 14,735,696
Collateralized indebtedness relating to stock
monetizations (a) — 1,314,788 1,314,788 — 1,314,788
Total debt c.cvveeveeeiiiiiceccccereecc e $ 1,358,494 $14,232,948 § 1,817,536 $16,050,484
Interest eXpense: ...........ccoooeiviiiiiiiiii
Credit facility debt, senior notes, capital leases and notes
PAYADIE ..o $ 656,177 $ — $ 656,177 $ 123,088 $§ 779,265
Collateralized indebtedness and notes payable relating to
stock MONetizations () .......cevevveveivveerieciiniicieiennes — 54,267 54,267 — 54,267
Total INtEreSt EXPENSE ..vvveververervereiereerrerenrereneenereereneenens $ 656,177 $ 54,267 $ 710444 $§ 123,088 $ 833,532
(a) This indebtedness is collateralized by shares of Comcast common stock. We intend to settle this debt by (i) delivering

shares of Comcast common stock and the related equity contracts, (ii) delivering cash from the net proceeds on new
monetization contracts, or (iii) delivering cash from the proceeds of monetization contracts entered into pursuant to the
Synthetic Monetization Closeout discussed below.

The following table provides details of our outstanding credit facility debt as of September 30, 2017:

Maturity Interest
Date Rate Principal Carrying Value (a)
Revolving Credit Facility (b) ....c.ccoccvverererennnene $20,000 on
October 9, 2020,

remaining balance
on November 30,

2021 4.49% $ 1,175,000 $ 1,149,024
Term Credit Facility ..........cccccoeveviveeiiiiieiene, July 17,2025 3.48% 2,992,500 2,974,768
$ 4,167,500 $ 4,123,792
(a) Carrying amounts are net of unamortized discounts and deferred financing costs.
(b) At September 30,2017, $123,473 of the revolving credit facility was restricted for certain letters of credit issued
on behalf of the Company and $1,001,527 of the facility was undrawn and available, subject to covenant

limitations.

The indentures under which the senior guaranteed notes and senior notes and debentures were issued contain various
covenants, which are generally less restrictive than those contained in the Credit Facilities Agreement. The Company
was in compliance with all of its financial covenants under these indentures as of September 30, 2017.
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Payment Obligations Related to Debt

As of September 30, 2017, total amounts payable by us in connection with our outstanding obligations (giving effect to
the Extension Amendment discussed below) during the periods indicated below and thereafter, including related interest,
capital lease obligations, notes payable, and the value deliverable at maturity under monetization contracts are as follows:

Restricted Other
Cablevision Group Entities (a) Total
2007 et $ 49,063 § 160,577 $ 8343 § 217,983
2018 et 857,193 1,717,598 33,101 2,607,892
2019 e 78,130 1,357,364 33,101 1,468,595
2020 .t 558,130 801,974 33,191 1,393,295
2021 1ot 38,130 2,980,380 1,475,743 4,494,253
Thereafter........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 687,154 11,502,423 — 12,189,577
TOAL...eec e $ 2,267,800 §$ 18,520,316 $§ 1,583,479 § 22,371,595
(a) Represents the Company's obligations (including related interest) in connection with monetization contracts it has entered

into. This indebtedness is collateralized by shares of Comcast common stock. We intend to settle this debt by (i) delivering
shares of Comcast common stock and the related equity contracts, (ii) delivering cash from the net proceeds on new
monetization contracts, or (iii) delivering cash from the proceeds of monetization contracts entered into pursuant to the
Synthetic Monetization Closeout discussed below.

Restricted Group

CSC Holdings and those of its subsidiaries which conduct our broadband, pay television and telephony services
operations, as well as Lightpath, which provides Ethernet-based data, Internet, voice and video transport and managed
services to the business market, comprise the "Restricted Group" as they are subject to the covenants and restrictions of
the credit facility and indentures governing the notes and debentures issued by CSC Holdings. In addition, the Restricted
Group is also subject to the covenants of the debt issued by Cablevision.

Sources of cash for the Restricted Group include primarily cash flow from the operations of the businesses in the Restricted
Group, borrowings under its credit facility and issuance of securities in the capital markets, contributions from its parent,
and, from time to time, distributions or loans from its subsidiaries. The Restricted Group's principal uses of cash include:
capital spending, in particular, the capital requirements associated with the upgrade of'its digital broadband, pay television
and telephony services, including costs to build a FTTH network and enhancements to its service offerings such as a
broadband wireless network (WiFi); debt service, including distributions made to Cablevision to service interest expense
and principal repayments on its debt securities; other corporate expenses and changes in working capital; and investments
that it may fund from time to time. Prior to the Cablevision Acquisition, the Restricted Group also made distributions
to Cablevision to fund dividends paid to its stockholders, share repurchases and senior note repurchases.

Credit Facility

On October 9, 2015, Neptune Finco Corp. ("Finco"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Altice N.V., which merged
with and into CSC Holdings on June 21, 2016, entered into a senior secured credit facility, which currently provides
U.S. dollar term loans currently in an aggregate principal amount of $3,000,000 ($2,992,500 outstanding at September
30,2017) (the “CVC Term Loan Facility”, and the term loans extended under the CVC Term Loan Facility, the “CVC
Term Loans”) and U.S. dollar revolving loan commitments in an aggregate principal amount of $2,300,000 (the “CVC
Revolving Credit Facility” and, together with the CVC Term Loan Facility, the “CVC Credit Facilities”), which are
governed by a credit facilities agreement entered into by, infer alios, CSC Holdings certain lenders party thereto and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as administrative agent and security agent (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise
modified on June 20, 2016, June 21, 2016, July 21, 2016, September 9, 2016, December 9, 2016 and March 15, 2017,
respectively, and as further amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “CVC Credit
Facilities Agreement”).

During the nine months ended September 30, 2017, CSC Holdings borrowed $1,350,000 under its revolving credit
facility ($500,000 was used to make cash distributions to its parent) and made voluntary repayments aggregating
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$350,256 with cash on hand. In October 2017, CSC Holdings made a voluntary repayment under its revolving credit
facility of $50,000. This amount was reclassified from long term debt to current debt on the consolidated balance sheet
as of September 30, 2017.

On October 31, 2017, CSC Holdings made a voluntary repayment under its revolving credit facility of $500,000.
CSC Holdings was in compliance with all of its financial covenants under the Credit Facilities as of September 30, 2017.

See Note 8 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the CSC Holdings
Credit Facilities Agreement.

Senior Notes

In September, the Company repaid the remaining $400,000 of 8.625% Senior Notes due September 2017 from borrowings
under its revolving credit facility.

In July 2017, the Company used approximately $350,120 of cash contributions received from its parent, Altice USA,
to fund the redemption of $315,779 principal amount of senior notes that mature in 2025 issued by CSC Holdings and
the related call premium of approximately $34,341. See Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements for further
details.

In April 2017, the Company redeemed $500,000 of the 8.625% Senior Notes due September 2017 issued by Cablevision
from proceeds of the CSC Holdings Term Loan pursuant to the March 15, 2017 amendment.

Capital Expenditures

The following table provides details of the Company's capital expenditures:

Successor
Three Months Ended September 30,
2017 2016
CuStomer Premise EQUIPITIENL ... ........c.eeeveeerierereereeeereeseseereeeseesesseseseseesessesesseseesessesessesessens $ 61,272 $ 38,236
NEtWOTK INTTASIIUCTUIE. .......cvviiiiiiiceiieceee ettt eeere e e e saeeesaneeeneeean 99,414 51,768
SUPPOTE AN OLNET .....oviiiieiiicieeeeee ettt ettt st ete et ese e ssennens 35,255 39,257
BUSINESS SEIVICES .....uveuiuttiiaieeteseirieteet sttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b sttt e bt be st senenenes 32,653 21,554
Capital purchases (Cash DaSis) ..........ccecvevieuirieriiiiieiiieestee e $ 228,594 § 150,815
Capital purchases (including accrued not paid)...........cceeeeeeeeieievieniicicececeeeeeeeeene $ 199,662 $ 134,177
Successor Predecessor
Combined
Nine months Nine Months
ended June 21, 2016 January 1, Ended
September 30,  to September 2016 to June September 30,
2017 30, 2016 20,2016 2016

Customer premise equipment $ 160,242  $ 38,276 |$ 68,418 §$ 106,694
Network Infrastructure ...........ocoveeveeeiiiiiiiiecee e 210,312 51,872 149,252 201,124
Support and other...........coeieirieieieieeeeee e 102,031 39,257 68,324 107,581
BUSINESS SETVICES......ooiviiieiiieieeeieeeieeee e 77,646 21,560 44,137 65,697
Capital purchases (cash basis) o $ 550,231 % 150,965 |$ 330,131 $ 481,096
Capital purchases (including accrued not paid) ................. $ 470,103 $ 144,425 |$ 334,863 $ 479,288

Customer premise equipment includes expenditures for set-top boxes, cable modems and other equipment that is placed
in a customer's home, as well as customer installation costs. Network infrastructure includes: (i) scalable infrastructure,
such as headend equipment, (ii) line extensions, such as fiber/coaxial cable, amplifiers, electronic equipment, make-
ready and design engineering, and (iii) upgrade and rebuild, including costs to modify or replace existing fiber/coaxial
cable networks, including enhancements. Support and other capital expenditures includes costs associated with the
replacement or enhancement of non-network assets, such as office equipment, buildings and vehicles. Business services
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capital expenditures include primarily equipment, installation, support, and other costs related to our fiber based
telecommunications business.

Settlements of Collateralized Indebtedness

The following table summarizes the settlement of the Company's collateralized indebtedness relating to Comcast shares
that were settled by delivering cash equal to the collateralized loan value, net of the value of the related derivative
contracts during the nine months ended September 30, 2017:

INUMDET OF SNATES (@) 1..vvevreeeiieieieeieeitie ettt ettt e et e eeebeesteeebeesbeeebeesseesaseessseesseesssaassaesseeesseesssenssens 21,477,618
Collateralized INAEbtedNESS SELLIEM ........oeiiieeeiiieeeeeeeeee ettt e e et ee e e e e eeaeeeeeeseeaeeeeeeas $ (617,151)
Derivative CONtracts SELISA .......ccuiiiiiiiiieiiecii ettt e e te e e e beestaeebeesaaeebeennee e (37,838)

(654,989)
Proceeds from New moONEtiZation CONITACTS..........ccoviiiieieieeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeteeeeteeeeeeeeeeeteeeeenaeeeeaeeeenseeesnns 662,724
NEE CASN PIOCEEAS ... .viuveeiieeiiteiiiteei ettt ettt ettt st te st te s s se b ese e b e st sseseebeseebeseesensesessesessesessesessesensens $ 7,735
(a) Share amounts are adjusted for the 2 for 1 stock split in February 2017.

The cash to settle the collateralized indebtedness was obtained from the proceeds of new monetization contracts covering
an equivalent number of Comcast shares. The terms of the new contracts allow the Company to retain upside participation
in Comecast shares up to each respective contract's upside appreciation limit with downside exposure limited to the
respective hedge price.

Additionally, in April 2017, the Company entered into new monetization contracts related to 32,153,118 shares of
Comcast common stock held by Cablevision, which synthetically reversed the existing contracts related to these shares
(the "Synthetic Monetization Closeout"). Asthe existing collateralized debt matures, the Company will settle the contracts
with proceeds received from the new monetization contracts. The new monetization contracts mature on April 28, 2021.
The new monetization contracts provide the Company with downside protection below the hedge price of $35.47 and
upside benefit of stock price appreciation up to $44.72 per share. In connection with the execution of these contracts,
the Company recorded (i) the fair value of the derivative contracts of $64,793 (in a net asset position), (ii) notes payable
of $111,657, representing the fair value of the existing derivative contracts, in a liability position, and (iii) a discount on
debt of $46,864.

CASH FLOW DISCUSSION

Cablevision Systems Corporation
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $863,623 for the nine months ended September 30,2017 compared
to $546,580 for the combined nine months ended September 30, 2016. The 2017 cash provided by operating activities
resulted from $1,290,228 of income from before depreciation and amortization, partially offset by $186,282 of non-cash
items, decreases in cash of $194,576 as aresult of a decrease in accrued liabilities, accounts payable and deferred revenue
and $45,747 resulting from an increase in current and other assets.

The 2016 cash provided by operating activities resulted from $936,179 of income before depreciation and amortization
(including impairments). Partially offsetting this increase was a decrease in cash of $279,780 as a result of a decrease
in accounts payable and other liabilities, $87,239 of non-cash items and $22,580 resulting from an increase in current
and other assets.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was $596,749 compared to $469,588
for the combined nine months ended September 30,2016. The 2017 investing activities consisted primarily of $550,231
of capital expenditures, payments for acquisition, net of cash acquired of $43,608, and other net cash payments of $2,910.

The 2016 investing activities consisted primarily of $481,096 of capital expenditures and other net cash payments
aggregating $2,317, partially offset by cash receipts of $13,825 from the sale of an affiliate interest.
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Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to $348,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 compared
to net cash provided by financing activities of $1,418,049 for the combined nine months ended September 30, 2016. In
2017, the Company's financing activities consisted primarily of repayments of credit facility debt of $2,866,506,
redemption and repurchase of senior notes, including premiums and fees of $1,265,055 dividend distributions to
shareholders of $925,262, payments of collateralized indebtedness and related derivative contracts of $654,989, principal
payments on capital lease obligations of $10,954, additions to deferred financing costs of $6,142 and distributions to
noncontrolling interests, net of $335, partially offset by proceeds from credit facility debt of $4,343,750, proceeds from
collateralized indebtedness of $662,724, contributions from Altice USA of $350,120 and proceeds from notes payable
of $24,649.

In 2016, the Company's financing activities consisted primarily of proceeds of $1,310,000 from the issuance of notes,
net proceeds from credit facility debt of $250,547, net proceeds from collateralized indebtedness of $91,841, net proceeds
from stock option exercises of $14,411 and contributions from noncontrolling interests of $240, partially offset by
payments of deferred financing costs of $180,067, payments related to the net share settlement of restricted stock awards
of $41,469, principal payments on capital lease obligations of $16,063, tax withholding associated with shares issued
for equity-based compensation of $6,034, payment of accrued dividends of $4,066, and repayments of notes payable of
$1,291.

CSC Holdings, LLC
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $687,181 for the nine months ended September 30,2017 compared
to $718,605 for the combined nine months ended September 30, 2016. The 2017 cash provided by operating activities
resulted from $1,368,314 of income from before depreciation and amortization, partially offset by decreases in cash of
$495,315 as a result of a decrease in accrued liabilities and accounts payable, $140,070 of non-cash items and $45,748
resulting from an increase in current and other assets.

The 2016 cash provided by operating activities resulted from $1,040,324 of income before depreciation and amortization.
Partially offsetting this increase was a decrease in cash of $260,453 as a result of a decrease in accounts payable and
other liabilities, $56,814 of non-cash items and $4,452 resulting from an increase in current and other assets.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was $596,749 compared to $469,588
for the combined nine months ended September 30,2016. The 2017 investing activities consisted primarily of $550,231
of capital expenditures, payments for acquisition, net of cash acquired of $43,608, and other net cash payments of $2,910.

The 2016 investing activities consisted primarily of $481,096 of capital expenditures and other net cash payments
aggregating $2,317, partially offset by cash receipts of $13,825 from the sale of an affiliate interest.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to $171,537 for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 compared
to net cash provided by financing activities of $1,253,012 for the combined nine months ended September 30, 2016. In
2017, the Company's financing activities consisted primarily of repayments of credit facility debt of $2,866,506, dividend
distributions to Cablevision of $1,663,734, payments of collateralized indebtedness and related derivative contracts of
$654,989, redemption and repurchase of senior notes of $350,120, principal payments on capital lease obligations of
$10,954, additions to deferred financing costs of $6,142 and distributions to noncontrolling interests of $335, partially
offset by proceeds from credit facility debt of $4,343,750, proceeds from collateralized indebtedness of $662,724,
contribution from Cablevision of $350,120, and proceeds from notes payable of $24,649.

In 2016, the Company's financing activities consisted primarily of proceeds from issuance of notes of $1,310,000, net
proceeds from credit facility debt of $250,547, net proceeds from collateralized indebtedness of $91,841, and
contributions from noncontrolling interests of $240, partially offset by distributions to Cablevision of $202,195, payments
of deferred financing costs of $180,067, principal payments on capital lease obligations of $16,063 and repayments of
notes payable of $1,291.
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Recently Issued But Not Yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Compensation- Stock Compensation (Topic 718). ASU No.2017-09
provides clarity and guidance on which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an
entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. ASU No. 2017-09 becomes effective for the Company on January
1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied prospectively.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07 Compensation-Retirement Benefits (Topic 715). ASU No. 2017-07
requires that an employer disaggregate the service cost component from the other components of net benefit cost. It also
provides guidance on how to present the service cost component and the other components of net benefit cost in the
income statement and what component of net benefit cost is eligible for capitalization. ASU No. 2017-07 becomes
effective for the Company on January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied retrospectively. The
Company has not yet completed the evaluation of the effect that ASU No. 2017-07 will have on its consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350). ASU No. 2017-04
simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by removing the second step of the two-step impairment test. The
amendment requires an entity to perform its annual, or interim goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of
areporting unit with its carrying amount. An entity still has the option to perform the qualitative assessment for a reporting
unit to determine if the quantitative impairment test is necessary. ASU No. 2017-04 becomes effective for the Company
on January 1, 2020 with early adoption permitted and will be applied prospectively.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805), Clarifying the Definition of
a Business, which amends Topic 805 to interpret the definition of a business by adding guidance to assist in evaluating
whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The new guidance
becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied prospectively.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain
Cash Receipts and Cash Payments which clarifies how entities should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments
on the statement of cash flows. ASU No. 2016-15 also clarifies how the predominance principle should be applied when
cash receipts and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows. The new guidance becomes effective
for the Company on January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted and will be applied retrospectively. The Company
has not yet completed the evaluation of the effect that ASU No. 2016-15 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which increases transparency and comparability by
recognizing a lessee’s rights and obligations resulting from leases by recording them on the balance sheet as lease assets
and lease liabilities. The new guidance becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2019 with early adoption
permitted and will be applied using the modified retrospective method. The Company has not yet completed the evaluation
of the effect that ASU No. 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10), Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. ASU No. 2016-01 modifies how entities measure certain
equity investments and also modifies the recognition of changes in the fair value of financial liabilities measured under
the fair value option. Entities will be required to measure equity investments that do not result in consolidation and are
not accounted for under the equity method at fair value and recognize any changes in fair value in net income. For
financial liabilities measured using the fair value option, entities will be required to record changes in fair value caused
by a change in instrument-specific credit risk (own credit risk) separately in other comprehensive income. ASU No.
2016-01 becomes effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The Company has not yet completed the evaluation
of the effect that ASU No. 2016-01 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, requiring an entity to
recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers. ASU No. 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes
effective and allows the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. In August 2015, the FASB
issued ASU No. 2015-14 that approved deferring the effective date by one year so that ASU No. 2014-09 would become
effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The FASB also approved, in July 2015, permitting the early adoption
of ASU No. 2014-09, but not before the original effective date for the Company of January 1, 2017.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-20, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, in order to clarify the Codification and to correct any unintended application of the
guidance. These items are not expected to have a significant effect on the current accounting standard. The amendments
in this update affect the guidance in ASU No. 2014-09, which is not yet effective. ASU No. 2014-09 will be effective
January 1, 2018 for the Company, reflecting the one-year deferral. Early adoption of the standard is permitted but not
before the original effective date. Companies can transition to the standard either retrospectively or as a cumulative-
effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption
of ASU No. 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and selecting the method of transition to the new
standard. The Company currently expects the adoption to impact the timing of the recognition of residential installation
revenue and the recognition of commission expenses.

Other Events
Distributions

CSC Holdings made cash equity distribution payments to Cablevision aggregating $1,663,734 during the nine months
ended September 30, 2017. These distribution payments were funded from cash on hand and with proceeds from
borrowings under CSC Holdings' revolving credit facility. The proceeds were used to fund Cablevision distributions to
Altice USA, repay a portion of the principal balance of the Cablevision 8.625% senior notes due 2017, and to fund
Cablevision's interest payments on its senior notes.

Cablevision's and CSC Holdings' indentures and CSC Holdings' credit agreement restrict the amount of dividends and
distributions in respect of any equity interest that can be made.

Commitments and Contingencies

As of September 30, 2017, the Company's commitments and contingencies for continuing operations not reflected in
the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheet increased to approximately $6,336,000 as compared to
approximately $5,780,000 at December 31, 2016. This increase relates primarily to renewed multi-year programming
agreements entered into during the nine months ended September 30, 2017.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

All dollar amounts, except per share data, included in the following discussion are presented in thousands.
Equity Price Risk

We are exposed to market risks from changes in certain equity security prices. Our exposure to changes in equity security
prices stems primarily from the shares of Comcast common stock we hold. We have entered into equity derivative
contracts consisting of a collateralized loan and an equity collar to hedge our equity price risk and to monetize the value
of these securities. These contracts, at maturity, are expected to offset declines in the fair value of these securities below
the hedge price per share while allowing us to retain upside appreciation from the hedge price per share to the relevant
cap price. The contracts' actual hedge prices per share vary depending on average stock prices in effect at the time the
contracts were executed. The contracts' actual cap prices vary depending on the maturity and terms of each contract,
among other factors. If any one of these contracts is terminated prior to its scheduled maturity date due to the occurrence
of an event specified in the contract, we would be obligated to repay the fair value of the collateralized indebtedness
less the sum of the fair values of the underlying stock and equity collar, calculated at the termination date. As of
September 30, 2017, we did not have an early termination shortfall relating to any of these contracts.

The underlying stock and the equity collars are carried at fair value on our consolidated balance sheets and the
collateralized indebtedness is carried at its principal value, net of an unamortized fair value adjustment. The fair value
adjustment is being amortized over the term of the related indebtedness. The carrying value of our collateralized
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indebtedness amounted to $1,314,788 at September 30, 2017. At maturity, the contracts provide for the option to deliver
cash or shares of Comcast common stock, with a value determined by reference to the applicable stock price at maturity.

As of September 30, 2017, the fair value and the carrying value of our holdings of Comcast common stock aggregated
$1,652,917. Assuming a 10% change in price, the potential change in the fair value of these investments would be
approximately $165,292. As of September 30, 2017, the net fair value and the carrying value of the equity collar
component of the derivative contracts entered into to partially hedge the equity price risk of our holdings of Comcast
common stock aggregated $52,488, a net liability position. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
we recorded a net gain (loss) of $55,602 and $(81,905), respectively, related to our outstanding derivative contracts and
recorded an unrealized gain (loss) of $(18,900) and $169,888, respectively, related to the Comcast common stock that
we held.

Fair Value of Derivative Contracts

Fair value as of December 31, 2016, net lHability POSTHON..........cceeieieieieieieteiese ettt ese s enis $ (2,202)
Fair value Of NEW deIIVATIVE COMIIACES..........cueiiiuieiieeeeeeee e e et e eeeeeeeee e et e et e eeaeeeseaeeseateeseseeseaeeseaseesaseesseesassessneens 31,619
Change in fair VAIUE, NEL...........cecieiiriiiiiiieieeet ettt ettt ettt b se b ssese b eseesessese s eseesessesessessesassasens (81,905)

Fair value as of September 30, 2017, net liability POSIHION..........cceeieieieieieieieteste ettt ee s ens $ (52,488)

The maturity, number of shares deliverable at the relevant maturity, hedge price per share, and the lowest and highest
cap prices received for the Comcast common stock monetized via a derivative prepaid forward contract are summarized
in the following table:

Hedge Price Cap Price (b)
# of Shares Deliverable (a) Maturity per Share (a) Low High
5,337,750 2017 $29.52 $ 3542 $ 3542
16,139,868 2018 $30.84-$33.61 $ 37.00 $ 40.33
21,477,618 2021 $29.25- $35.47 $ 4388 $ 44.80
(a) Represents the price below which we are provided with downside protection and above which we retain upside
appreciation. Also represents the price used in determining the cash proceeds payable to us at inception of the
contracts.
(b) Represents the price up to which we receive the benefit of stock price appreciation.

Fair Value of Debt: At September 30, 2017, the fair value of our fixed rate debt of $13,239,635 was higher than its
carrying value of $11,912,303 by $1,327,332. The fair value of these financial instruments is estimated based on reference
to quoted market prices for these or comparable securities. Our floating rate borrowings bear interest in reference to
current LIBOR-based market rates and thus their principal values approximate fair value. The effect of a hypothetical
100 basis point decrease in interest rates prevailing at September 30, 2017 would increase the estimated fair value of
our fixed rate debt by $297,735 to $13,537,370. This estimate is based on the assumption of an immediate and parallel
shift in interest rates across all maturities.

PART IL OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Refer to Note 14 to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for a discussion
of our legal proceedings.
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SIGNATURE

Cablevision and CSC Holdings have duly caused this Quarterly Report to be signed on their behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATION
CSC HOLDINGS, LLC

Date: November 13, 2017 /s/ Charles Stewart

By: Charles Stewart as Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer of Cablevision Systems
Corporation and CSC Holdings, LLC
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